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CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZEERR AR

Financial Highlights

MBRE

OPERATING RESULTS %4&

2013

20134
HK$'000

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12831ALEE
2012 2011 2010 2009
2012% 20114 20104 20095
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER

TERr TERr TER TERr

Turnover g 796,594 1,232,287 372,726 328,120 367,056
Operating profit (loss) feesr (B18) 60,320 96,443  (224,349) 52,942 66,171
Finance costs B A (27,292) (25,930) (10,524) (779) (586)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB T (EE) 33,028 70513  (234,873) 52,163 65,585
Income tax (expense) credit  FTEH () R (16,978) (51,866) 3,417 (12,947) (12,615)

Profit (loss) for the year

ARERAN (B5R) 16,050

18,647 (231,456) 39,216 52,970

Profit (loss) attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

THIAT R
R (EH8) -
YNt 2PN 16,365
ey B (315)

18,660 (229,858) 36,610 53,010
(13) (1,598) 2,606 (40)

16,050

18,647 (231,456) 39,216 52,970

FINANCIAL POSITION Ef#%5R %

As at 31 December
M128318
2012 2011 2010 2009

2012 20114 2010 2009
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TR TR FRT TR

Total assets
Total liabilities

1,812,470 1945034 871,860 725,102
(755,183)  (908,167)  (164,845)  (74,912)

1,067,287 1,036,867 707,015 650,190

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
Non-controlling interests

1,065,273 1,034,844 703,601 649,382
2,014 2,023 3,414 808

2013
20134
HK$'000
FHx
BELE 1,652,395
BELE (573,819)
1,078,576

ARAIHERA
E(L RS 1,076,778
R 1,798
1,078,576

1,057,287 1,036,867 707,015 650,190

Note: The consolidated results of the Group for the two years ended MeE © A & B A 220134 &2012412 431

31 December 2013 and 2012 and the assets and liabilities of the BIEMEFENGEEEMAEER
Group as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 have been extracted 20134 K20126F12A31E M E &E K&
from the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as BERHEEARNTFRAETCETIEN

set out on pages 76 to 79 of the Annual Report.

FEERKBRRGAVBHRE -
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Corporate Information

REER
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CORPORATE WEBSITE
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BELAWE

PRCE
A8 (BR2013F 12 ASHEZ )
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CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEARAF

Chairman’s Statement

ETRBEE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of CGN Mining
Company Limited (“CGN Mining” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | hereby
announce the audited consolidated results of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

In 2013, the natural uranium trading business continues to bring
significant source of revenue to the Group.

During the reporting period, the Group has achieved the following
results:

. Turnover of HK$797 million (2012: HK$1,232 million);

o Gross profit margin after deducting selling and distribution
expenses being 18% (2012:14%);

° Profit attributable to owners of the Company being HK$16
million (2012: HK$19 million); and

o Profit attributable to owners of the Company/turnover being
2% (2012: 2%).

To optimise our business model, we have re-positioned ourselves
as a uranium resources investment and trading platform with
natural uranium trading to become one of the key focus, which in
turn diversifies the business model of the Group. To strengthen
our competitiveness, we shall devote further resources (such
as human resources) to developing our natural uranium trading
business to facilitate our operation.

The natural uranium market is one with boundless opportunities
as well as challenges. The Central government has been actively
promoting the development of clean energy resources, expediting
the consolidation of energy structure and increasing the supply of
clean energy. Nuclear power development is an irreversible trend
that is strongly supported by the Central Government. Uranium
is a key element to nuclear power production and the increase
in nuclear power plants in China will go further instigating the
natural uranium demand. In the long run, this will provide a better
business environment and respectable return for the uranium mine
investment and the development of natural uranium industry.

AAZERERFPEZBEERQR ([FE
BREE]SARR]D EREMNEAR
(ZBIr&EE) Exg ([EEg)) =
MHAEEHZ2013F12A31HIEFEZ
ICBIZIRE R -

2013 - RAME FERBELRAE
EHER T EBHRARIR -

WEMBA > NREBETERE T TEE

° BEBABIITES T
12.3218/87L)

(20124 -

. HBRHEERDHASZBEERNER
18% (20124 : 14%) :

. RNABIEA ANEEZF AB16EE
WL (20124F - 19EBEHBT) ' &

. RABHEB ARG & T B & 55
LR B2% (20124 1 2%) °

RELCHEEN  AEBEHEMLSH
BERRENESFE  RARMBHRS
AEBEZETEXBRRE L — EXAKH
EBEZ - BMBAREEBERZH
FH o AKEKAEEZER (MADE
R NBRRAMESHES - tMEEE
e

RN T 45 78 o PR A 0B I R IR PR -
PR TEBHEESRERER - IR
FEEEREE - EINB ,f%i EIRULIE o EP
ABFEBEFERZERENZBAR

A B & o KA 3h R XA ?éFEE/]E;tE
= BAKEWHEEERMRAHN T
Ko REME  EHRREMHERLRA
MITEEREHEANEFTRE LB
HY [ g o



Environmental pollution, high costs and limited supply pertaining
to tradition power production sources (such as oil and coal) is a
major concern in Mainland China which puts the consolidation
of energy structure into a series of practices. Ever since the
Fukushima event in Japan, the Central government has placed
strong emphasis on maintaining the safety of nuclear power
production and as such further upgraded the technology used in
this sector. This is advantageous to the development of nuclear
power as a clean, economic and stable source of energy so as
to promote the removal of pollution and reduction of emission,
abate climate change and in part solve the shortfall on energy
requirements.

The long term economic growth of China has spurred strong
demand for energy in the country and we expect that this growth
shall be carried into the growth of the nuclear power industry,
uranium or related industries. Affected by the Fukushima events
and other macro-economic factors, the price of natural uranium
remains on the low side, however, this creates opportunities for
investors in natural uranium resources investment projects. The
Group will continue to develop the scale of natural uranium trading
business and proactively seek investment opportunities in uranium
resources, accelerating the momentum for the Group’s revenue.

The profitability of the pharmaceutical and food segment, affected
by the keen competition in the pharmaceutical industry, continues
to decline. In the foreseeable future, consolidation is expected to
take place in the markets of pharmaceuticals and food in the PRC,
with substantial pressure on the operating environment. The Group
will reinforce our risk management and trim down the existing
pharmaceutical and food business.

We endeavor to lay good foundation, endlessly pursue
breakthrough, preserve sustainable growth and create value for
the shareholders.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERESE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

As the Chairman of the Board and for the first time, | would like to
thank our partners, clients as well as shareholders in supporting
us and on the part of the Board. | would like to thank all our staff
in striving for excellence in their work.

Zhou Zhenxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year 2013, the consolidated turnover of the Group
decreased by approximately 35% year-on-year from approximately
HK$1,232 million to approximately HK$797 million as compared to
the previous year.

The decrease in the turnover of the Company for the year 2013 as
compared with the previous year was primarily attributable to the
decrease in income generated from the natural uranium trading
business which recorded approximately HK$743 million (2012:
HK$1,167 million). As a result, the Group has recorded a decrease
in profits as compared to the year 2012.

As a whole, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$16 million (2012: HK$19 million).
Basic earnings per share was HK$0.49 cents (2012: HK$0.56
cents). The Group’s financial position remained strong during the
year, with approximately HK$1,030 million (2012: HK$605 million)
of bank balance and cash as at 31 December 2013. Gearing ratio
(total borrowings/equity attributable to owners of the Company, net
of intangible assets and goodwill) as at 31 December 2013 was
48% (2012: 47%).

Trading of Natural Uranium

Over the year, the directors of the Company have been exploring
suitable business opportunities to broaden the revenue base and
to diversify the business scope of the Company.

BEEFWR DT

E 3 eI

2013%F  AEFBZGAEEBREFY
12328870 THEN7I7TESB T &
FEHRIE4935% ©

RATI2013FFELHEREL EF TR -
TERHRRAME HEBELENBA
BT FREGEEHRTAIESR
gL (2012%F : 1167 B L) c Bt - K
EBRIS 8 FE2012F % ©

BEmME  ARRHEEABEZENOE
168 &8 7T (20125 - 19E BB T) °
i E A & F) 50.497% 1L (20124 -
0.56581lll) - REB L F BT BKRR
BB N2013FE12A318  NEBEH
BIRTEH KIS 410.30(8F T (2012
F:6.05BET) BEXABELEX (2
BEE/ MRAEFEERBEENAR
AlMER AEL#ER) AB48% (20124 ¢
47%) °

RAME S

ZER ARREFRINERAER
W DERBSEREZTEERAR
B2 R
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE TN

The Group has commenced the trading of natural uranium in
2011. Uranium has the largest atomic number of natural element.
In the crust, uranium exists in uranium minerals, isomorphic
form and absorbed state. Uranium is chemically active, so no
pure uranium exists in nature. In general, uranium ore is mined
and then uranium is extracted from the ore to form uranium-rich
intermediate products, often referred to as uranium concentrates,
which is further purified into uranium oxides. The international
market usually uses triuraniumoctaoxide (UsOs) as the standard
product in the trading of natural uranium.

The Group has recorded HK$743 million turnover in trading
of natural uranium during the reporting period, a decrease
of approximately 36% as compared with the turnover of
approximately HK$1,167 million last year.

Pharmaceutical and Food Industry
Product Sales

During the year, the Group’s turnover from sales of pharmaceutical
and food product amounted to approximately HK$46 million, a
decrease of approximately 21% as compared with the sales of
approximately HK$58 million last year.

Madaus products

Regarding the trading of overseas agency products of Madaus
GmbH, Germany which include, inter alia, Legalon (Silymarin) and
Uralyt-U (Potassium Sodium Hydrogen Citrate Granules) in the
year 2013, the Group was selling the remaining stock of Madaus
products and has recorded turnover of approximately HK$17,000,
a decrease of approximately 100% as compared with the sales
of approximately HK$10 million last year. After these Madaus
products had all been sold out, the Group ceased to sell Madaus
products.

REBR20MFHRBRAMIE H XK -
HEBARPRERFFERANITE
R R T EAIEY  BEEERNR
M RRENTE T - R EMHE
R FTAB AR FRERAH G -
FEBAMBEFRRE  BERNTESK
SHESNTHER BEHSMEE
R WRBE-FRMA MIX
ALy - BT SBEER/N\RI =
(UsOe)fE /R AIE HHITEEMR °

REBERAREMARF7 43EETH
ARME S ERE - BEFH1.67FE
TR LT TEHI36% °

BERRERES

ERHEE

FRN - AEBZEFRRAEELERE
K46EBAT BEAFL8EE BT
8 TRE4921% °

1B 55 18 1+ A ZE R 2

ERERERESE T RERNZERT
|- B (R e [F el OkRaE
=) MRS ] (RGBS AR o
R2013%F - AEECDHERBESFELA
B E mI R SR F B AL 8RS 417,0008
THEXREREFHNIOEEBTERE
LB - TR #9100% © 1 F il E moh B
® AREEEFLHEREEFELAE
REE M ©
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“Taurolite®”, a prescription medication capable of dissolving the
cholesterol stones formed in the gallbladder and bile-duct

“Taurolite®” Tauroursodeoxycholic acid capsule cures and
prevents liver diseases such as cholelithiasis and chronic bile
stasis. In the case of cholesterol stone smaller than 2cm, sufferers
may simply dissolve it by taking the medication without having to
undergo surgical operation. “Taurolite®” has been launched into
the market during the second half of the year 2009. Turnover for
the year 2013 was approximately HK$31 million, representing a
growth of approximately 54% as compared with the turnover of
approximately HK$20 million last year.

The Production Base in Wuhan, Hubei Province, the PRC

During the year 2013, our major production included a drug
“Glimepiride orally disintegrating tablets” —
diabetes, “Vital Fast” — a slow release flu medication and “Opin” —

medication for

a gynaecology biological drug.

Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Sichuan Hengtai Pharmaceutical Company Limited is the major
sales arm of the Group. During the year 2013, major sales
products included, inter alia, “Taurolite®”.

Property Investment
Leased investment property

Property investment segment includes leased properties situated
in Sichuan, the PRC. During the year 2013, the property investment
business contributed approximately HK$7.6 million (2012: HK$7.0
million) rental income to the Group. The increase was mainly due
to the improvement of occupancy rate and rental level.

BEEFWR DT

[CEEFRC) — B RENE ZFINE & HE B A
Val-0)- Wi

[EERC FRAERaERBE =25
BATERIE B B2 4 A e TR R
Fm - FEETEFTEIIINEFIEE
THRER G/ R2cmBEEEE A - [JE
BNFC] R2009F THFHH THE - B
013 B EEEHNIIBERA L BB
FH0E BB L E XL (15 HE
#154% o

PEMLERETHEER

2013F N AIREEAE : ARAE
MBREHE®R MEFER] - AEREN
B[R ARSRERRHR A A Y B
mIBRFE].

mIMfERBHEER AR

mIEZBEARRARAKE 2R
HEQTE - R01BFTERTHENE
o B3 (AR B 1E) [DEZERC] -

FiHERE
REYXEHE

EHERED BB AT EM)IE K
BEHAME - R2013F  BHIEREE
BAAEBEERH7.68 BB T (2012
F:7088%8n) HaliA - REFH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE TN

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Board is of the view that the markets of food, pharmaceuticals
and properties of the PRC will be consolidated in the foreseeable
future given the existing pressure in the operating environment.
The Group will strengthen risk management and scale down the
existing pharmaceutical and food business. At the same time, the
Group will continue to develop the scale of natural uranium trading
and proactively identify uranium resource investment opportunities
to preserve the sustainable growth and long-term value of the
shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Capital structure

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had in issue
3,332,586,993 ordinary shares (31 December 2012: 3,332,586,993
ordinary shares). During the year 2013, the Company had not
issued any new shares (2012: nil). The market capitalisation of the
Company as at 31 December 2013 was approximately HK$2,066
million (31 December 2012: HK$2,866 million).

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any outstanding
bank borrowing (31 December 2012: nil). Bank balances and cash
amounted to approximately HK$1,030 million (31 December 2012:
HK$605 million), with no pledged bank deposits (31 December
2012: HK$1 million). The increase in bank balances and cash was
mainly due to the decrease in advance of a revolving loan to a
shareholder during the year.

RBRE

ExeRn EUEENKEK AR
LREARDMENES > BANER
BEmMEET S/ RER - AEE
gnEEREERERREZERIR
a5 o BRI - ANEE G EERR
AAME FHORERBES K ERK
BMRE @R AFENERMBRR
MREEE -

Bt %5 B R
ERLEH

2013 F12A31H » A QA B %174
3,332,586,993% & i@ i (20124 12H
31H :3,332,586,9930% & & i) - B
2013%F & » AR R IR A ZHITEMH
fig 7 (20124 : f&) o 2013%F 12
318 - KA AW ™AL A20.661E 75 T
(2012512 A31H : 28.66fE#E L) °
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/) BITFERERESLOA/10.30EE T
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group has not obtained banking
facilities from any banks (31 December 2012: nil). The average
cost of financing was around 5% (2012: 5%) per annum in 2013.
The Group has maintained sufficient financial resources for
business operation purpose. The Group has no seasonality of
borrowing requirement.

The Group adopts conservative funding and treasury policies and
objectives. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
financed its operations mainly by internally generated resources.

As at 31 December 2013, in relation to cash and bank balances
amounting to approximately HK$1,030 million (31 December 2012:
HK$605 million), approximately 60% (2012: 15%) of which was
denominated in USD, approximately 38% (2012: 80%) of which
was denominated in HK$ and approximately 2% (2012: 5%) of
which was denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”).

Exposure to foreign exchange risk and currency policy

The sales of the Group were mainly denominated in USD and
RMB (2012: USD and RMB). Purchases were mainly denominated
in USD and RMB (2012: USD and RMB). Operating expenditures
including administrative expenses and selling and distribution
expenses, were primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB.

In 2013, the Group did not enter into any forward contracts,
interest or currency swaps or other financial derivatives for
hedging purpose. During the year, the Group did not experience
any material difficulty or negative effect on its operations or
liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

BEEFWR DT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWE TN

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2012: nil).

Key financial figures and ratios
Statement of profit or loss items:

Gross profit margin: During the reporting period, the Group has
strategically scaled down its pharmaceutical and food business.
The turnover from natural uranium trading business has decreased
by approximately 36%. Nevertheless, the average gross profit
margin for the year 2013 increased to approximately 19% when
compared to approximately 16% for the corresponding period
in 2012, due to the increase in gross profit margin of the natural
uranium business.

Other operating income: The other operating income for the
year 2013 was approximately HK$21 million, which had been
decreased by approximately HK$34 million as compared to the
year 2012. It was mainly attributable to the decrease in bank
interest income and gain on disposal of a property during the
year.

Selling and distribution expenses: The Group identified high
selling and distribution expenses as business risk and aimed to
tighten the outflow. The ratio of selling and distribution expenses
to turnover significantly decreased from 3% for the year 2012 to
1% for the year 2013.

Administrative expenses: The Group focused on tightening its
budgetary control to cut down administrative costs, as a result the
administrative expenses decreased from approximately HK$130
million in 2012 to HK$90 million in 2013.

HREME
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Finance costs: The finance costs for the year 2013 mainly arose
from the convertible bond issued and allotted in the second half of

year 2011.

Statement of profit or loss items:

Turnover (HK$' million)

Gross profit margin

Selling and distribution expenses
(HK$’ million)

Gross profit margin after deducting selling
and distribution expenses

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company/Turnover

Earning before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA") (HK$’ million)

EBITDA/Turnover

Statement of financial position items:

BEEFWR DT

BEKAN  2013FNBMEXNATEMR
2011 F N ERTREENATRERES

MELSE -
Year 2013 Year 2012
20134 20124
B#EKRER
EXRE (BB 797 1,232
ESVIES 19% 16%
HE R HHAXZ
(B8%T) 10 35
MBRHE RS HRAZE
FEAE 18% 14%
ZAN/NCIE ZE DN bl
EEL ] 2% 2%
RS - Be  FEM
BIHRT R B A
(TEBITDAL) (BE&#TT) 66 103
EBITDAHE & S FH LY K 8% 8%
HEMRRKRER

Gearing ratio: The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2013 (total
borrowings/equity attributable to owners of the Company, net of

intangible assets and goodwill) was 48%, as compared to the

gearing ratio of 47% as at 31 December 2012.

BAREEL R B2013F12A318 » &
SENEABELX (2BBEE IR
EREAERBERNAQRES AEWG
#25) B48% » M2012F12A831H A A
47% °
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BEENWE TN

As the turnover of the Group decreased by approximately 35% year-
on-year and the average trade receivables increased in the year
2013, the average trade receivable turnover days increased from
approximately 45 days to 104 days. The Group does not generally
hold any inventory for the natural uranium trading business, but
the cost of sale decreased by approximately 38% year-on-year
while the Group hold more inventories from the pharmaceutical and
food business as at end of year 2013, the inventory turnover days
increased from approximately 5 days to 9 days.

Statement of financial position items: BRI RIER
Liability component of convertible bonds ATBRESN EEIL
Bank balances and cash WITRETF RS

Net tangible assets BREEFE
Gearing ratio BEREERE

Average trade receivable turnover days
Average inventory turnover days FEIRE — T
(excluding goods in transit)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have (2012: HK$1
million) bank balances and cash that were pledged as collateral
to a bank. For the year 2013, return on equity was on average 2%
(2012: 2%).

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 179 employees. 130 of
these employees were located in China and 49 in Hong Kong.

The policies of remuneration, bonus, share option scheme and
training for the Group’s employee are commensurate with the
performance of the employees and comparable to market rate.
The Group encourages employees to participate in external
training programs to develop themselves on a continuous
development basis, so as to improve staff performance to meet
future challenges and gain a competitive edge. Total staff costs
for the year 2013 amounted to approximately HK$52 million (2012:
HK$52 million).

FEM R TR — 15

(T REEEREM)

HRAEEMNE EBIEFA T EL35%
M2013F M) Y EUR K Lt - FEUR
) FYBE AR O45K EFE104K ©
REEB-—RLERRABEIEBES
FAEE  BEREEMHEKNEFT
TFE#138% M2013F R A LB RFARS
ERRRGEBZIFE  FEEBKLS
XEFAZEIX -

As at As at

31 December 31 December
2013 2012
20134 R20124F
12A31H 12H31H
HK$’ million HK$’ million
BHEBT BEBT
521 493

1,030 605

1,078 1,055

48% 47%

104 days 45 days
104X 45K

9 days 5 days

9K 5K

R2013%F12831H  "EER A (2012
F1EEEL) ROEFRESERR
FIRITIEAEA M - R2013FE IR
B4 RIMRTYH2% (201245 : 2%) °

EBEEEHR
MR2013%F12A31H » KEEHHF179%

BB %SEE8® 130BHRHE-
A9B BTN BE ©

REBETHEHM - £ - BIRETE
RIFIIR R 75 E S B R 8 69 R R EMA
MATHKE - AEEHEREREBRLR
MINRB RN BHIFIRERELER -
NIREBEIRE - DESEkE - £
HEAXEENTISRFED - 2013F
BRI B TR B #4528 8% T (2012
F:B2EEBIL) °
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Chairman and non-executive Director

Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, aged 57, was appointed as a chairman
and a non-executive director on 5 December 2013. Mr. Zhou is
currently the chairman of the board of CGNPC Uranium Resources
Co., Ltd. (CGNPC-URC”), China General Nuclear Power Services
Corporation and CGN (Beijing) Nuclear Technology Application
Co., Ltd.. Mr. Zhou joined China National Nuclear Corporation
in March 1989 as an engineer of the general affairs division of
the nuclear resources bureau department between March 1989
and May 1991 and was the deputy director of the general affairs
division of the nuclear resources bureau department between
June 1991 and December 1992, taking charge of the job
duties, and subsequently the secretary to the executive deputy
general manager (which is the equivalent of head of divisions)
of China National Nuclear Corporation between January 1993
and January 1996. Between July 1996 and December 1999, he
joined Unilever Wall's (China) Co., Ltd. as vice general manager
and head of human resources & external relations, concurrently
between July 1998 to April 2001, he also served as vice president
of Sumstar Group Co., Ltd., a company under Ministry of Light
Industry. Between May 2001 and March 2003, Mr. Zhou joined
China Universities Intelligence Bank Co., Ltd. as the executive
vice president, head of human resources and head of project
management. Between April 2003 and September 2006, Mr.
Zhou joined Galaxy Captek Co., Ltd., a member of China General
Nuclear Power Corporation (formerly known as China Guangdong
Nuclear Power Holding Corporation) (“CGNPC”) and its
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as (“CGN Group”), as general
manager. Between October 2006 and August 2009 he was the
general manager of CGNPC-URC. He has been the chairman of
the board of CGNPC-URC since August 2009. Mr. Zhou graduated
with a bachelor of engineering degree in metal materials
engineering from the Hebei University of Science and Technology
and with a master of engineering degree in metal materials and
heat treatment from the Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Zhou
has extensive experience in operation and management of large-
scale enterprises at home and abroad, as well as the practical
operation experience in uranium resources exploration and
nuclear resources operation system.
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Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. Yu Zhiping, aged 50, is the chief executive officer and
executive director of the Company. He was appointed a non-
executive director on 18 August 2011 and was re-designated from
the chairman and a non-executive director of the Company to the
chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company
on 5 December 2013. Mr. Yu is a senior engineer. He joined CGN
Group in 1989, and is currently a general manager of CGNPC-
URC. Prior to that, he was the secretary general of the Financial
and Economic Affairs Committee, director of the research centre,
and a general manager of the strategic planning department of
CGNPC. Mr. Yu has over 23 years of experience in corporate
management and uranium exploration. Mr. Yu is currently the
chairman of Swakop Uranium (Pty) Limited and a non-executive
director of North River Resources plc (listed on AIM of the London
Stock Exchange, ticker: NRRP). Mr. Yu graduated with a bachelor
degree in Engineering Mechanics from Huazhong University of
Science & Technology in 1985.

BEERTERVTES

REFRE 508 0 BARAIERHIT
ERNITES - HHR2011F8A18A &
ZERBIENITES - WHN2013F12H5
HBEAQAREFRINTESATAE
FHRITERATEST - REERSRT
20D - HA1989F A EREE -
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Executive Director

Mr. He Zuyuan, aged 48, is the executive director, executive
vice president and authorised representative of the Company.
He was appointed an executive director on 18 August 2011 and
was re-designated from the chief executive officer to an executive
vice president of the Company on 5 December 2013. He joined
CGN Group in 2007 and is currently a deputy general manager
of CGNPC-URC. He had served as a chief financial officer of
CGNPC-URC. Mr. He has over 21 years of experience in uranium
exploration and financial management. He has worked for Nanjing
Zhongda Group for 3 years, serving as its chief financial officer
and vice president. Mr. He is currently a director of Beijing Sino-
Kaz Uranium Resources Investment Company Limited, Energy
Metals Ltd. (a listed company in Australia, stock code: EME),
China Uranium Development Company Limited, North River
Resources plc (listed on AIM of the London Stock Exchange,
ticker: NRRP), Taurus Mineral Limited and Semizbay-U LLP. He
was once a director of Kalahari Minerals and Extract Resources
Pty Ltd.. Mr. He graduated with a bachelor degree from East
China Institute of Geology in 1988 and was also awarded an MBA
degree from Tsinghua University.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Chen Qiming, aged 51, was appointed a non-executive
director of the Company on 5 December 2013. Mr. Chen is a
non-executive director of Silver Grant International Industries
Limited (listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited: stock code: 171) and vice chairman of its board
of directors since 15 February 2012. He is a senior engineer in
the PRC. Mr. Chen has over 15 years of experience in the power
industry. Mr. Chen joined CGNPC, a substantial shareholder of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited, in 1996 and served
various positions including head of the construction contract
division of Ling Ao Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CGNPC, head of the commercial division of CGNPC, manager
of the contract procurement department of Liaoning Hongyanhe
Nuclear Power Co., Ltd., manager of the contract and
procurement department of China Nuclear Power Engineering Co.,
Ltd. and the deputy general manager and general manager of the
capital operation department of CGNPC. He obtained a bachelor
of science in engineering from the East China University of
Metallurgy in 1984 and a master in economies from the University
of International Business and Economics in 2003.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Xing Jianhua, aged 42, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 5 December 2013. Prior to this, he
was the deputy general manager of the finance department
at CGNPC and before that the assistant general manager of
its finance department. In March 2002, he joined Changsha
Research Institute of Mining and Metallurgy Co., Ltd. as head of
the finance department and he resigned from the position in April
2005. Between April 2005 and February 2006, Mr. Xing was the
general manager of the finance department of China Potevio Co.,
Ltd. In February 2006, Mr. Xing joined the accounting division
of the finance department of China Guangdong Nuclear Power
Engineering Co., Ltd. and in April 2006, he was promoted to the
head of the accounting division of the finance department. In
June 2007, he was further promoted to head of the finance project
investment control department of China Guangdong Nuclear
Power Engineering Co., Ltd. In May 2008, he joined CGNPC as
assistant general manager of the finance department and then
between May 2009 and January 2012, he was promoted to the
deputy general of the finance department. Since January 2012,
Mr. Xing holds the position of the general manager of the finance
department of CGNPC. Mr. Xing graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in mining engineering from Hunan University of Science
and Technology and a master’s degree in accounting from Wuhan
University of Technology.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Jianming, aged 50, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 5 July 2012. He joined the
Group since its establishment in April 1998. Prior to Mr. Huang’s
resignation in November 2009, Mr. Huang was one of the founders
of the Group, vice-chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, who was responsible for planning and deciding the
business and production strategy and daily operation. During
the period from April 2004 to November 2009, Mr. Huang was an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Huang graduated from
Luzhou Chemical Engineering College in 1981. Mr. Huang was
employed as a management staff of Sichuan Chengdu Fourth
Pharmaceutical Plant for 11 years since 1982 and accumulated
over 22 years of management experience in the pharmaceutical
industry.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Ling Bing, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 18 August 2011. He is
a qualified lawyer in the PRC, and is currently a Chinese Law
professor of the University of Sydney, Australia. Mr. Ling is a
member of the Executive Council of the Chinese Society of
International Law, a consultant to the research centre of law of
the sea of School of Law of Tsinghua University, a consultant to
the Centre of Comparative Law and Transnational Law of Tilburg
University in the Netherlands and an external consultant for
both the LLM Program in Chinese Law of the Faculty of Law of
the University of Hong Kong and the LLM Program of the Open
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ling was a professor and associate
dean of the Faculty of Law of the Chinese University of Hong
Kong, a visiting professor of the Law School of Tsinghua University,
an adjunct professor of School of Law of Fudan University, a
visiting professor of Law School of the University of Michigan, and
a tutor of the Institute of International Law of Peking University. Mr.
Ling has over 21 years of experience in Business Law teaching
and research. Mr. Ling has an LLB degree from Peking University
and an LLM degree from the University of Michigan.

Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Qiu Xianhong, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 18 August 2011. He is
a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC and a senior accountant.
Mr. Qiu is a partner of Beijing QQCPA Accounting Firm. Mr.
Qiu is also a finance consultant to China Institute of Strategy
and Management. Mr. Qiu was the deputy head of the financial
department and asset management department of China National
Packaging Corporation, and the deputy director of the Financial
Department of China Patent Bureau. Mr. Qiu has over 27 years
of experience in financial accounting, financial management and
auditing. Mr. Qiu graduated with a bachelor degree in financial
accounting from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics.
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Independent Non-executive Director

Mr. Huang Jinsong, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 18 August 2011. He is
an associate professor of Corporate Management of the School of
Economics and Management of Beijing University of Aeronautics
and Astronautics, joined the Company in August 2011. Mr. Huang
has worked as the chief consultant to Beijing Zhengxinchuangye
Investment Consulting Company Limited for 3 years. Mr. Huang
has over 12 years of experience in corporate reorganization and
development strategy. Mr. Huang has a master degree and a
doctorate degree in Management, both of which are from Tsinghua
University.
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The Company is committed to establishing and fulfilling a good
corporate governance practice and procedure, by ensuring
a quality board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”),
sound internal control, and transparency and accountability to
all shareholders. We believe that good corporate governance
practice can earn the trust of shareholders as well as other
stakeholders, and most importantly, preserve the long-term
interests of the shareholders.

To allow the shareholders to have an informed view, we set out
below a summative report describing what we have done to
follow the corporate governance practice for the year ended 31
December 2013.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance policy follows the principles
and practice stated in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report) (the “Corporate Governance Code”).

In the opinion of the Board of the Company, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code during the period from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2013, except for the deviation from the code provision
disclosed below.

Code provision A.6.7: This Code provision stipulates, inter alia,
independent non-executive Directors and other non-executive
Directors, as equal Board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders.
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Mr. Yu Zhiping (re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director on 5 December 2013), formerly a non-
executive Director, Mr. Wei Qiyan (resigned as a non-executive
Director on 5 December 2013), Ms. Jin Yunfei (resigned as a non-
executive Director on 5 December 2013) and Mr. Huang Jianming,
a non-executive Director, and Mr. Ling Bing, an independent non-
executive Director, were unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2013 (the “2013 AGM”)
due to other business engagement.

Code provision E.1.2: This Code provision stipulates the chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting. He should
also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and
any other committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence,
he should invite another member of the committee or failing this
his duly appointed delegate, to attend. These persons should be
available to answer questions at the annual general meeting.

Mr. Yu Zhiping, formerly the Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of the Nomination Committee (re-designated as
the chief executive officer and as an executive Director on 5
December 2013) did not attend the 2013 AGM due to other
business engagement. Mr. Yu Zhiping has appointed Mr. He
Zuyuan, formerly the Chief Executive Officer and a member of
the Nomination Committee, to attend the 2013 AGM and answer
questions raised by shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the principle
standards of securities transactions for the directors of the
Company. All Directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the reporting
period.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and role

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprises 2 EDs (“EDs”"),
4 NEDs (“NEDs”) and 3 INEDs (“INEDs”) with the following
membership information on which each Director serves:

Director

EDs

Mr. Yu Zhiping
(Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from chairman and
NED to chief executive officer
and ED on 5 December 2013)

Mr. He Zuyuan
(re-designated from Chief Executive
Officer to executive vice president
on 5 December 2013)

ITES
(BE#HTE)
(F2013%F12A5H
MEFRIFNITES
ATRERENITER
WITESE)

AT E
(R2013F12A5HH
BREWITERALAR
wISEIRE)

NEDs FHTES
Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) ARE (L)
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (F2013%12H5H
BEE)
Mr. Chen Qiming PREERR S A
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (FR2013F12 A5 B EL )
Mr. Xing Jianhua ERELLE
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (R2013F 12 A5 HERAT)
Mr. Huang Jianming ERASE
INEDs BIFUTES
Mr. Ling Bing B
Mr. Qiu Xianhong RS SEE
Mr. Huang Jinsong BN
Notes:
C — Chairman of the relevant Board committees
M — Member of the relevant Board committees

Remuneration Audit Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
FMZEE BERZEEE REZE®

M M
M
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M
M M M
© © M
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The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
“Directors’ Profile” of this annual report.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years in accordance with Article 108 of the Articles of Association
and the Corporate Governance Code.

The Board complies with Rules 3.10(1)&(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules in relation to the appointment of at least three INEDs,
which represents at least one-third of the Board, and one of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications on accounting
or related financial management expertise.

Each of the INEDs has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent.

The Board members does not have any financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationships with each other.

In accordance with paragraph C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Directors have conducted a review of the overall
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and
concluded that all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management are effective.

The Board takes charge of the corporate governance function and
is responsible for the tasks stated below. The Board may delegate
the responsibilities to other committees as it thinks fit:

(a) to review the Company’s compliance policies, programs
and procedures and make recommendations as necessary
from time to time;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

FESNEREHFBHRAGTRIZESFH
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to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
to ensure compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements;

to oversee the implementation of any code of conduct
and/or business ethics of the Company to ensure the
Company’s compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations, including but not limited to the Listing Rules
and the Takeovers Code;

to review the Company’s compliance with the code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report;

to form any committee(s) or panels, appoint members
thereto, delegate at any time and from time to time to any
person or committee(s) or panel(s), any of its powers and
functions conferred on it, review and approve the reports of
the committees(s) and panel(s), review their performance
and revise their composition and terms of reference as
appropriate;

to oversee all matters and to formulate policies in
relation to the Company’s internal control, succession
plans, remuneration and compensation for Directors and
employees, risk management, corporate governance
and corporate social responsibility, and to supervise the

Company’s management to implement such policies;

investigate any significant instances of non-compliance or
potential non-compliance of the Company; and

to do any such things to enable the Board to discharge its
obligations and responsibilities.

(f)
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Major work performed by the Board as regards the corporate
governance function during 2013 includes:

reviewing and approving the inside information policy;

reviewing and approving the board diversity policy;

reviewing the directors’ compliance with the Model Code;

and

reviewing and agreeing on the independence of INEDs.

Change of directorship and composition of committees

Re-designation of Directors:

(1)

Mr. Yu Zhiping was re-designated from the non-executive
chairman of the Board to the chief executive officer and an
ED, with effect from 5 December 2013;

Mr. He Zuyuan was re-designated from the chief executive
officer and an ED to an executive vice president and an ED
with effect from 5 December 2013;

Resignation of Directors:

(1)

3)

Mr. Li Xianli has resigned as an ED, the chief financial
officer and a member of the Remuneration Committee, with
effect from 5 December 2013;

Mr. Wei Qiyan has resigned as a NED and a member of the

Audit Committee, with effect from 5 December 2013; and

Ms. Jin Yunfei has resigned as a NED, with effect from 5
December 2013.
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Appointment of Directors:

(1) Mr. Zhou Zhenxing has been appointed as the non-
executive chairman of the Board and the chairman of the
Nomination Committee, with effect from 5 December 2013;

(2) Mr. Chen Qiming has been appointed as a NED, with effect
from 5 December 2013; and

(3) Mr. Xing Jianhua has been appointed as a NED and
a member of the Audit Committee, with effect from 5
December 2013.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, to the knowledge of the
Company, there is no financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among members of the Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors, including the chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer, are required to retire from office by rotation once every
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at the
annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association (the “Articles”) and the Corporate Governance
Code.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
one-third of the Directors, who have served the longest on the
Board, must retire and be eligible for re-election at each annual
general meeting.

Any further re-appointment of an INED who has served the
Company’s Board for more than 9 years will be subject to separate
resolution to be approved by shareholders.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
directors appointed to fill casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the next general meeting after their appointment, and shall be
subject to re-election by shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance Code,
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. During the period from 1 January
2013 to 31 December 2013, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by
way of attending training seminar or reading material on legal and
regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

A summary of training taken by the Directors since 1 January
2013 up to 31 December 2013 is set out as follows:

ESHEII

RIEMHEERTRISFRIFEAGSK  EF
ESLEFENEEERIGR  UBEER
EHEMBEET - ERAMREST
ERARHEBHASTAESSELER
Bt > ®2013%F1A1HZ=2013F 128311
HM - BEEZSEEBHFEEIEEK
BEEANASHAEEETRELBE
EHANEREREEER  2HBENR
BITERERER -

LA B &R B 201341 B 18 20134
12A31HESEMES Z25EI -

Type of training

Directors BE EAEE
EDs BITES
Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer) REF (BEHTE) a
He Zuyuan fAlfE 7T a
Li Xianli ZIRST n/a
(resigned on 5 December 2013) (7201312 A5HEHTE)
NEDs FHTES
Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) BIRE (/%) a
Chen Qiming PR B b
Xing Jianhua FERE a
Huang Jianming = 2 a
Wei Qiyan RHEZS n/a
(resigned on 5 December 2013) (R2013F 12 A5 A &#HT)
Jin Yunfei BrEMR n/a
(resigned on 5 December 2013) (2013512 A5HEHT)
INEDs BYFHITES
Ling Bing &R
Qiu Xianhong [ 53k a
Huang Jinsong ESIIN b
Notes: BT
a: attending training seminar a 7 55 5 5
b: reading seminar materials on legal and regulatory subjects b: BE 7 B AR R ) B 7 ok PR SR B A K ek

relevant to the Company'’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
obligations

EABOLEREEAHR
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the period between 1 January 2013 and 4 December 2013,
the chairman of the Company is Mr. Yu Zhiping and the chief
executive officer of the Company is Mr. He Zuyuan. For the period
between 5 December 2013 and 31 December 2013, the chairman
is Mr. Zhou Zhenxing and the chief executive officer is Mr. Yu
Zhiping. The Company has complied with code provision A.2.1
which stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is functioning properly, with good corporate governance
practices and procedures, whereas the chief executive officer,
supported by the EDs and management team, is responsible for
managing the Group’s businesses, including the implementation
of major strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board.

NEDS

The term of appointment of NEDs are as follows:

NEDs FHTES
Zhou Zhenxing JE) i B
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (R2013F 12 A5 B EZR(T)
Yu Zhiping RET
(re-designated from the (201312858 H
non-executive chairman to a chief FEBITER AT
executive officer and an executive RERPTER
director on 5 December 2013) HITEE)
Chen Qiming BRI B

(appointed on 5 December 2013)

Xing Jianhua ERRE
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (R2013F 12 A5 B EZRT)
Huang Jianming =iEH
Wei Qiyan BREZ
(resigned on 5 December 2013) (FR2013F 12 A5HEHE)
Jin Yunfei STER
(resigned on 5 December 2013) (F20135 12 A5 BHE)
* There is no specific term of appointment after Mr. Yu's re-
designation to ED.
> Term of appointment ends on 5 December 2013 following the

resignation of the director.

(R2013F12 ASREET)

ERERRE
ERRERUTE

20131 A1H 2201312 54H 1+ 5
M ARREFRREFLEE  AAA
BREWMITE BAETTLE - H2013F12
A5H Z£2013F12A31H I #if# - £ /%
REARRESE  BERATERRETL
Ao RRRIE BTG EA2 14 -
ERIAFERERENTENABCAET
S TEBRR—EBEAET - EFE
EMRESTERINEEEREN R
BFTEZEHMETESL: MEaFEHT
FRIBETHNTESRERERMIE
T EREENSS  BENITE
BERMMEEREERERE

FYTES
FRTEFREENFHNT -

Term of Appointment

ZEFH

5 December 2013 — 4 December 2015
20135123508 — 2015612 A4H

18 August 2011 — 17 August 2013*
20118 H18H — 2013F8H17H*

5 December 2013 — 4 December 2015
2013F 12 A5H — 201512 A4H

5 December 2013 — 4 December 2015
2013F12A5H — 201512 H4H

5 July 2012 — 4 July 2014

201247 A5H — 201447 A4H

5 July 2012 — 4 July 2014**

20127 A58 — 20147 A48

5 July 2012 — 4 July 2014**

201247 A5H — 2014467 A48

RALHETANTEFRIBRTER
EHIR -

b ESHTRZEHREZE2013F128
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kong Chun Hin, Jason, (“Mr. Kong”) has been appointed as
the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
since 27 August 2012. Ms. Lai Siu Kuen (“Ms. Lai”) of KCS Hong
Kong Limited, an external service provider, has been appointed
as the joint company secretary of the Company on 5 December
2013. The primary contact person of the Company is Mr. Kong,
the joint company secretary of the Company. Mr. Kong reports
to the chairman and/or the chief executive officer directly and is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board complies with
relevant procedures, laws and regulations and Board meetings are
conducted efficiently and effectively. Mr. Kong is also responsible
for ensuring that the board is fully appraised of the relevant
corporate governance developments relating to the Group and
facilitating the professional development of the Directors. Ms.
Lai assists Mr. Kong in performing his duties as the Company
Secretary.

In accordance with the Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Kong
and Ms. Lai have received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training for the year 2013.

BOARD PROCESS

During the year, the Board met regularly to discuss and formulate
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group. In addition to acting by written
resolutions, Directors participated the meeting either in person, by
proxy, or through electronic means of communications.

Board members have full access to relevant information both at
the meetings and at regular intervals.

At least 14 days’ notices of all Board meetings were given to all
Directors, who were given an opportunity to include matters in the
agenda for discussion. The finalised agenda and accompanying
board papers were sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior to the
meetings.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors have
conducted a review of the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group.
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The Company held an annual general meeting during the year FRN - ARER2013F5816BAH T
on 16 May 2013 and an extraordinary general meeting on 9 —RREBFE KRG RMN2013F12H9H

December 2013.

BRT —RBRREFFIAS -

Attendance records of each Director at Board meetings held for FESNEZE2013F12H31BLEFER
the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out as follows: FNESERMNERELEAT

Directors

EDs
Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)
He Zuyuan
Li Xianli
(resigned on 5 December 2013)

NEDs
Zhou Zhenxing

(appointed on 5 December 2013)
Chen Qiming

(appointed on 5 December 2013)
Xing Jianhua

(appointed on 5 December 2013)
Huang Jianming
Wei Qiyan

(resigned on 5 December 2013)
Jin Yunfei

(resigned on 5 December 2013)

INEDs

Ling Bing

Qiu Xianhong
Huang Jinsong

Number of Number of

meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/held alternate/held

mMERES

BEHE RELEN
8By BEHE
EHEEBE BHEEHE

HITES
REF (BEHTE) 2/5 3/5
fAJ1E T 3/5 2/5
=31hv

(FR2013F 12 A5 AEHMT) 4/4 -
FHTES
B ¥

(R2013FE12 A5 AEZRT) 1/1 -
PR AR

(R2013F 12 ASHEZRT) 1/1 =
EpgiE

(R2013F 12 ASHEZR(T) 1/1 -
=R 5/5 -
BEE

(FA2013F 12 A5 BEHT) 2/4 2/4

(R2013E12 A5 A ELT) 1/4 3/4
BIYFHITES
EE 3/5 =
B 54k 5/5 -
LN 5/5 —

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial EAABRRAEEHFEAELENMEE

shareholder or a Director arise, the matter was discussed in
a physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. INEDs with no conflict of interest were present at
meetings dealing with such conflict.

R EHEERNELARMNSH LB
Tl T ABRIE > MIEAZERZER
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The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance in respect of legal action against Directors.

DELEGATION AND WORK DONE BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership and oversees the Group’s business
management, strategic decisions, performance and affairs of the
Group.

The Board has formulated a clear written policy that delineates
a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved for board
approval before making decisions on behalf of the Group. The
reserved matters include, among other things:

1. the development strategy and planning;

2. corporate policies;

3 financial planning;

4, investment planning;

5 annual budget;

6. major disposals and acquisitions;

7. major connected transactions;

8. appointment and resignation of directors, company

secretary and other senior management;

9. other significant operational and financial matters.

In addition to work relating to corporate governance function,
other major work performed by the Board during 2013 includes:
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approving the 2013 budget planning;

approving the rules applicable to board proceedings;

approving the unaudited interim results for the period
ended 30 June 2013;

approving the directors’ report, audited financial statements
and auditors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2012;

considering the non-payment of dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2012 and for the period ended 30
June 2013 respectively;

proposing the re-election of directors and the authority
of the Board to fix the remuneration of the directors to be
approved at the 2013 AGM;

proposing the share issue and repurchase general
mandate to be approved at the 2013 AGM,;

proposing the re-appointment of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited as the auditors of the Company and the authority of
the Board to fix the auditors’ remuneration to be approved
at the 2013 AGM;

approving the entering into of a major and continuing
connected transaction as regards the revolving loan facility
agreement between the Company as lender and China
Uranium Development Company Limited as borrower;

approving the entering into of a continuing connected
transaction as regards the sale of natural uranium
framework agreement between the Company and CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co., Ltd,;

approving the resignation of Mr. Li Xianli as an ED, the
chief financial officer and a member of the Remuneration
Committee;

10.

11.
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approving the resignation of Mr. Wei Qiyan as a NED and a
member of the Audit Committee;

approving the resignation of Ms. Jin Yunfei as a NED;

approving the re-designation of Mr. Yu Zhiping from the
non-executive chairman of the Board to the chief executive
officer and an ED;

approving the re-designation of Mr. He Zuyuan from the
chief executive officer to the executive vice president;

approving the appointment of Mr. Zhou Zhenxing as the
non-executive chairman of the Board, and a member of
Nomination Committee and his remuneration;

approving the appointment of Mr. Chen Qiming as a NED
and his remuneration;

approving the appointment of Mr. Xing Jianhua as a
NED and a member of the Audit Committee, and his
remuneration;

approving the appointment of Ms. Lai Siu Kuen as the Joint
Company Secretary;

approving the appointment of Ms. Jin Yunfei as the chief
financial officer.

The day-to-day operation and management of the Group are

delegated to the senior management. Certain authorities and

responsibilities are also delegated to the Audit Committee, the

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the following committees with defined

terms of reference, which are of no less exacting terms than those

set out in the Corporate Governance Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) is
delegated by the Board to perform its duties within the ambit of
the terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2013 and 4 December
2013, the Audit Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr.
Qiu Xianhong (a Certified Public Accountant in the PRC and
with substantial financial accounting, financial management and
auditing experience), who serve as the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Mr. Ling Bing, and one NED, Mr. Wei Qiyan.

During the period between 5 December 2013 and 31 December
2013, the Audit Committee comprises two INEDs, namely Mr. Qiu
Xianhong, who serve as the chairman of the Audit Committee and
Mr. Ling Bing, and one NED, Mr. Xing Jianhua.

The function of the Audit Committee is basically to assist the Board
in providing an independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting process, internal control and risk management
system of the Group, and overseeing the audit process. The Audit
Committee also serves as a focal point for communication, among
directors, the external auditors, and the management as regards
financial reporting, internal control and the auditing.

Major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2013 includes:

1. assessing the independence and objectivity of external
auditors;
2. reviewing the internal control and risk management system

of the Company;

8 reviewing the unaudited interim results for the period ended
30 June 2013;

4. reviewing the audited annual results for the year ended 31
December 2012.
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Two (2) Audit Committee meetings were held during the year. The
attendance of each Audit Committee member is set out as follows:

FRARTTMRAREREZEEEH -8
fUEZEZEGRBNHERROT :

Number of Number of

meetings meetings

attended in attended by

person/held alternate/held

HERES

BEHE REHEW

gEHE =1

Name of Members EHEEHE CHERHE

Qiu Xianhong (chairman) BBk (£/) 2/2 -
Xing Jianhua FRE

(appointed on 5 December 2013)* (2013512 ASHEERT) * - -

Ling Bing &R 2/2 -

Wei Qiyan (resigned on 5 December 2013)  #8H 7= (720135 12 A5H B E) 1/2 1/2

No Audit Committee meeting was held for the year ended 31
December 2013 after the appointment of Mr. Xing Jianhua.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) is delegated by the Board to perform its duties within
the ambit of the terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2013 and 4 December 2013,
the Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Qiu Xianhong, Mr. Ling Bing and Mr. Huang Jinsong and two EDs,
namely, Mr. He Zuyuan and Mr. Li Xianli.

During the period between 5 December 2013 and 31 December
2013, the Remuneration Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely, Mr. Qiu Xianhong, Mr. Ling Bing and Mr. Huang Jinsong
and two EDs, namely, Mr. Yu Zhiping and Mr. He Zuyuan.

The function of the Remuneration Committee is basically to
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of all remuneration of EDs, NEDs and senior
management and review the specific remuneration packages of all
EDs and senior management with reference to the corporate goals
and objectives.
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Major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2013 includes:

1. reviewing the management’s remuneration package for the
year 2013 with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

2. making recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration packages of individual EDs and senior
management (including those re-designated EDs and CEO
effective from 5 December 2013) for the year 2013;

3. making recommendations to the Board as to the
remuneration of NEDs (including those NEDs appointed on
5 December 2013) for the year 2013;

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (excluding the Directors) by band for the year ended
31 December 2013 is set out below:

Remuneration band (HK$)
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the 5 highest paid EERDERRTMATHMSFS -
individuals are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial BN GEE I EmARMTT6 -
statements.

Two (2) Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the FANRITTMRTHEESSH -
year. The attendance of each Remuneration Committee memberis  UHEEZE €K ENEFIZT AT ¢
set out as follows:

Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/held alternate/held

HEFES
BEHE RELEN
gEHAE B38E

Name of Members A-E EHEE8E GHE=R%A
Qiu Xianhong (chairman) Rt (/) 2/2 -
Yu Zhiping R
(appointed on 5 December 2013)* (FR2013F 12 A5 HEZLT) * - -
He Zuyuan fAlfETT 1/2 1/2
Ling Bing & 1/2 -
Huang Jinsong =Y 2/2 -
Li Xianli (resigned on 5 December 2013) IR (FR2013F 12 ASHET) 2/2 S
* No Remuneration Committee meeting was held for the year ended * REERETF L AERE E20135F12
31 December 2013 after the appointment of Mr. Yu Zhiping. ASIBLFETEBITHFMNEE S

=3
A’ e



41

Annual Report 2013

ZE-=FFR

Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 15 March 2012 with written terms of
reference in accordance with the Code provisions. The Nomination
Committee is delegated by the Board to perform its duties within
the ambit of terms of reference.

During the period between 1 January 2013 and 4 December
2013, the Nomination Committee comprises one NED, namely
Mr. Yu Zhiping as chairman and one ED Mr. He Zuyuan, and three
INEDs, namely, Mr. Ling Bing, Mr. Qiu Xianhong and Mr. Huang
Jinsong.

During the period between 5 December 2013 and 31 December
2013, the Nomination Committee comprises one NED, namely Mr.
Zhou Zhenxing as chairman and one ED, Mr. Yu Zhiping and three
INEDs, namely, Mr. Ling Bing, Mr. Qiu Xianhong and Mr. Huang
Jinsong.

The function of the Nomination Committee is basically to
review and formulate the nomination procedure as regards the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of Directors; review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and make
recommendations or any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company’s corporate strategy; and to make
recommendation to the Board on candidates for appointment as
Directors. The Nomination Committee follows rigorous selection
procedure in choosing the right person as a member of the Board.
Various criteria such as appropriate professional knowledge,
experience, skills and possible contribution of the candidate will
be considered.

Major work performed by the Nomination Committee during 2013
includes:

1. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. reviewing the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee and their effectiveness in the discharge of
duties and considering the need for any changes;
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3. making recommendations to the Board as to nominate

Directors for re-election of directorship at the 2013 AGM,;

4. making recommendations to the Board as to the change of
the Board and Board committee members;

5. making recommendations to the Board as to the re-
designation of Directors, appointment of the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Company;

6. assessing the independence of INEDs.

Two (2) Nomination Committee meetings were held during the

year. The attendance of each Nomination Committee member is
set out as follows:

Name of Members

3. FAEFSIIEREFTN2013F K
REFAGLEEREFREE

.
=

4 HAEFEREFEREFEED
BB B BRI i

5. MEXSREEACT ZEEL
AEFEEHREBNTTIRY
B

6. AHZEN IFITE R 2B NE -

ENBTTRQRELEESRE -6
MR EEEERENLEBERHHMT :

Number of
meetings
attended by
alternate/held
HERES
REHEW
=1 -
BRERYAE

Number of
meetings
attended in
person/held

BEHE
2EHAE
BHERKE

Zhou Zhenxing JEIHR L

(appointed on 5 December 2013)* (FR2013F 12 A5 HEZRT) * = =
Qiu Xianhong Jisieyee 2/2 -
Yu Zhiping REF 1/2 1/2
Huang Jinsong LI/ 2/2 =
Ling Bing &R 1/2 -
He Zuyuan (resigned on 5 December 2013) a8 7T (FA2013%E12 A5 A BHT) 1/2 1/2
* No Nomination Committee meeting was held for the year ended 31 * P 22 B ik B 5t A 1& B 20134512

December 2013 after the appointment of Mr. Zhou Zhenxing.

In line with the amendments to the Corporate Governance Code
regarding Board diversity, which became effective on 1 September
2013, the Board adopted the Board diversity policy in August
2013. The Company recognises the merits of Board diversity
and sees the edge of Board diversity in driving competitiveness.
In making up the Board’s composition, the Board has regard
to varied skills, regional and industry experience, background,
gender and other attributes of the Board members. All Board
appointments are based on the talent, skill and experience, the
diversity as a result of gender difference to suit the operational
needs.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards have
been adopted, appropriate accounting policies have been used
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgments
and estimates have been made. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

The Company’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
acknowledged its reporting responsibilities pursuant to the
Corporate Governance Code. The auditor’s responsibilities are set
out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the remuneration paid to
the Company’s auditor, Messrs. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, is
set out as follows:

P 2 £ 69 AR 7%

B2 IR
FEBE LR

Services rendered

Audit services
Non-audit services

The significant amount of fee incurred for the non-audit services
arises from i) reviewing financial results of subsidiaries for agreed
periods end of 2013; ii) the review of interim financial statements
for six months ended 30 June 2013; and iii) the preparation of
cash flow projections comfort letter for the purpose of the circular
dated 19 November 2013 issued in connection with the proposed
major and continuing connected transaction in relation to the
revolving loan facility agreement.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’ BREMBRRAZ

MEETING

In order to ensure that all shareholders of the Company enjoy
equal status and effectively exercise their own rights, the
Company convenes shareholders’ general meetings every year in
accordance with the Articles of Association. During the year, two
(2) shareholders’ general meetings were held, including the annual
general meeting held on 16 May 2013 and one (1) extraordinary
general meeting held on 9 December 2013. The attendance of
each Director at the general meetings during the year ended 31

ABREANRMBERRZREFEMAL
BERMITEBR SRS AQRBRER
RERBENNREEFARABREART -
RAFE » NAR)HEBITRHR(2)NEE K
2 Hh e R2013F58168 £1T7 2
A% R 4 K& F—(1)8kR20135F 1289
HRITHBREFIAE - SESREE
2013F12A31H L FELERERTIE

December 2013 is set out as follows: REHIAAT
Number of Number of
meetings meetings
attended in attended by
person/held alternate/held
HEEES
RELEN
BaLE/ eR8e
EHEE8E GHE=R%A
EDs BITES
Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer) REFE (BEHTE)
(re-designated from the non-executive (FR2013F12A5H
chairman to chief executive FRITERRATR
officer and ED on 5 December 2013) HENTERNITES) 0/2 -
He Zuyuan AT
(re-designated from chief executive (7201312 A5H
officer to executive vice president HEERNITERTR
on 5 December 2013) BISEIRE) 2/2 -
Li Xianli (resigned on 5 December 2013) IR (FR2013F 12 A5 HEHE) 1/1 =
NEDs FHTES
Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman) AR (/%)
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (FR2013F 12 A5 A EERE) on =
Chen Qiming PR XA
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (FR2013F 12 A5 HE L) on =
Xing Jianhua SRR
(appointed on 5 December 2013) (FR2013F 12 ASHEERT) on =
Huang Jianming =R 0/2 =
Wei Qiyan (resigned on 5 December 2013) 3% (7A2013F 12 A5 HBHE) on -
Jin Yunfei (resigned on 5 December 2013)  #$7ER (H20135E12 558 BHE) 0/1 -
INEDs BYFHITES
Ling Bing EE 0/2 -
Qiu Xianhong BB 4Tt 1/2 =
Huang Jinsong ESESII/N 1/2 -
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, on the requisition of one or
more shareholders of the Company holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings,
the Directors may proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company (“EGM”).

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM and deposited at
the registered office of the Company in Cayman Islands and/or the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
requisitionists must state the purposes of the meeting and sign the
requisition letter.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed to convene a meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene a meeting,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as
a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the Joint
Company Secretary, Mr. Jason Kong, in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CGN Mining Company Limited
at Suites 6706-07, 67/F., Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

2. By facsimile: (852) 2806 2861

38 By email: cs@cgnmc.com

Voting by poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39 of the Listing Rules and Article 72 of the
Articles, any votes of the Shareholders at a general meeting
must be taken by poll, except where the chairman in good faith,
decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural
or administrative matter to be voted by a show of hands.
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Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a general
meeting shall follow the procedures below.

On the requisition in writing of either i) any number of shareholder
of the Company representing not less than one-fortieth of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates; or ii) not less than 50 shareholders, the Company shall, at
the expense of the requisitionists:

a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of any
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting;

b) circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter
referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to be
dealt with at that meeting.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the registered office of the Company in Cayman
Islands and/or the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary not less
than 6 weeks before the general meeting in case of a requisition
requires notice of a resolution, or not less than 1 week before the
general meeting for any other requisition.

Change in Constitutional Documents

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no significant
change in constitutional documents of the Company.

By Order of the Board
Kong Chun Hin, Jason
Joint Company Secretary
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The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding company and engaged in
trading of natural uranium. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in selling, distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products and property investment. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year is set out in note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
KONG

The head office and principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is located on Suites 6706-07, 67/F., Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 76 of the annual
report.

Since the Group intends to retain sufficient capital for business
development, the Board would not recommend the payment of a
final dividend (2012: Nil).

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2012: Nil).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2013 is set out on
page 2 of the annual report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out on pages 80 and 81 of the annual report.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, AND
PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE
RIGHT

Details of the movements in intangible assets, property, plant and
equipment, investment properties, and prepaid lease payments on
land use right of the Group are set out in notes 17, 18, 19 and 20
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

In 2011, the Company issued convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$600,000,000, which can be converted into
2,608,695,652 shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.23
per share. The proceeds from convertible bonds may finance new
business opportunities or investments of the Group. Details of
the convertible bonds are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

EDs

Mr. Yu Zhiping (Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from non-executive chairman
to chief executive officer and ED
on 5 December 2013)

Mr. He Zuyuan
(re-designated from chief executive officer to
executive vice president on 5 December 2013)

Mr. Li Xianli (resigned on 5 December 2013)

NEDs
Mr. Zhou Zhenxing (Chairman)
(appointed on 5 December 2013)
Mr. Chen Qiming (appointed on 5 December 2013)
Mr. Xing Jianhua (appointed on 5 December 2013)
Mr. Huang Jianming
Mr. Wei Qiyan (resigned on 5 December 2013)
Ms. Jin Yunfei (resigned on 5 December 2013)

INEDs

Mr. Ling Bing

Mr. Qiu Xianhong
Mr. Huang Jinsong

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles, any Director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional Director
shall hold office only until the next following general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at the meeting
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at such
general meeting. On 5 December 2013, Mr. Zhou Zhenxing was
appointed as the non-executive chairman, and Mr. Chen Qiming
and Mr. Xing Jianhua were appointed as NEDs. All of them were
eligible and, will offer themselves for re-election at the next annual
general meeting of the Company.
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In accordance with Article 108 of the Articles, Mr. Yu Zhiping and
Mr. Ling Bing will retire from office by rotation as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation), in respect of those Directors who
are due to retire and offer for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the Director’'s service contracts, no contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or its subsidiaries were a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 17 to 22.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2013
amounted to approximately HK$1,029,444,000.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SHARES

None of the Company and its subsidiaries redeemed any of
its shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares
during the year 2013.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “2010

Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting of the

Company held on 2 June 2010 and terminated the share option
scheme approved by the shareholders of the Company on 23 July
20083 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”) at the same meeting.

The 2010 Share Option Scheme

After the adoption of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, no share
option was granted. The following disclosure is a summary of
the 2010 Share Option Scheme as required by Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules.

(1)

@)

Purpose:

The purpose of the 2010 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to Eligible Participants
(as defined below) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the Company and/or any of the subsidiaries.

Participants:

The Eligible Participants of the 2010 Share Option Scheme
to whom option(s) may be granted by the Board shall
include any employees, NEDs, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture partners
and any shareholders of any members of the Group or any
invested entities or any holders of any securities issued by
any members of the Group or any invested entities.
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Total number of shares available for issue under the 2010
Share Option Scheme and percentage of issued share
capital at the date of approval of the share option scheme:

The number of shares which can be issued is 155,105,699
shares representing approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company at the date of approval of the 2010
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant:

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2010 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month period
must not exceed one percent (1%) of the then total issued
share capital of the Company.

The periods within which the shares must be taken up
under an option:

An option shall be exercisable in whole or in part and
in accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence on the day on which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than
ten (10) years commencing from the date the Board makes
an offer of the grant of an option subject to the provisions
for early termination thereof.

The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the
offer of the grant of options to an Eligible Participant, there
is no minimum period for which an option granted under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme must be held before it can
be exercised.
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(7)

(8)

9)

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments of calls must
or may be made or loans for such purpose must be paid:

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by an
Eligible Participant within twenty-eight (28) days from the
date of the offer of grant of the option. A consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable on acceptance of the offer of grant of
an option.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

Subject to the adjustment made in accordance with the
terms of the 2010 Share Option Scheme, the exercise price
in respect of any particular option shall be such price as
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the
time of making the offer of grant of an option (which shall
be stated in the letter containing the offer of grant of an
option) but in any case the exercise price must be at least
the highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated
in The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”)’'s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer
of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The remaining life:

The 2010 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2010.

The “2003 Share Option Scheme”

The share option scheme effective on 26 January 2002 was

replaced by a new share option scheme adopted by the
shareholders on 23 July 2003 (the “2003 Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to grant share
options to selected participants satisfying the criteria according to

the 2003 Share Option Scheme as incentives or rewards for their

contribution to the Group.

(7)

(8)

(9)

53

Annual Report 2013

—E-ZFER

Directors’ Report

EEEHRG

FERIEAENBIRIERTENZ
EHE - ARN K Z BN NE
EEREENZHIR -

AERSEEEANBELBREEZ
WL E AR ZT\(28)HR
BEMERCEREZL  mEM
BEEERBEZEARAESINRE
1.00%8 7T °

FEE AR

R 1220104 M fx i 51 B & 3K
EHZ A TRAFTEEREZ
TEEEAESERIRERLE
BREBHZHE2REBBETZE
B(EEARBREZBEREZNE
HRETH)  EEEMIBERTIT
FEENERLATI=ER 2K
BE(OROIREEEREZLY
EH (BAXSH) 2KmE (MK
ERMERSMBERAR ([BR
Frl) SARERMEAE RE)
(WBRHREERLBREZNA
HATAG)EEER ZFHKME
(LR RABREBRMEAEA
£) 5 R(i)RDTEE -

I FRBRH

2010F R AT B E M A 8
201056 A2 #£ 104 -

2003 F BB IR AEST 2

MR2002F1 26 B A 2 IR EETEIE
i A% B R 200347 A 238 4 < #1 BB AR
W2l ([2003F M2 ) BUK -

2003F fE AR HEET &I B TE M Z 5 /552003
FHERETSSEEG T 2EKES R
ERTHERE EREHAEEELE
Rz EXE) sk 88 E -



54

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEARAF

Directors’ Report

EEEHE

The maximum number of securities to be issued upon the exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the 2003 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant shares
capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 127,746,216 shares representing
10% of the share in issue at the date of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme. Subsequently, the general scheme limit was refreshed
and approved at the annual general meeting on 31 May 2005, and
the limit was re-set to 154,170,699 shares.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2003 Share Option
Scheme to each participant in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being.

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the options. The subscription price
for shares under the 2003 Share Option Scheme will be a price
determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet for trades in one or more board lot of shares
on the date of the offer of grant, or (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for trades in one or more board lot of shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant,
and (iii) the nominal value of shares. A nominal consideration of
HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2003 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Directors to each grantee, which
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the offer
but shall and in any event be not later than ten years from the
date on which the offer is made subject to the provisions of early
termination thereof.
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The 2003 Share Option Scheme commenced on 23 July 2003 and
ended on 2 June 2010.

No options were granted for the year ended 31 December 2013.

First phase:

On 21 June 2002, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.39 per share. Those who were granted with
the options can exercise their rights in multiple periods starting
from 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 6,850,000 shares

From 1 January 20083 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,280,000 shares

From 1 January 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 6,510,000 shares

From 1 January 2005 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,360,000 shares

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 100,000 share options
granted were lapsed, no option was forfeited or cancelled. As at
31 December 2013, no share options remained outstanding and
exercisable.

Second phase:

On 28 February 2003, the Directors granted options to three
directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group to subscribe for
19,800,000 shares of the Company, with an exercise price at
HK$0.24 per share. The grantees are entitled to exercise the
subscription rights on or before 6 February 2012.

All of the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2004.
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Third phase:

On 29 September 2003, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.51 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 2
January 2004 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 2 January 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 8,990,000 shares

From 2 July 2004 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 21,010,000 shares

As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 14 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 16,595,000 options were granted to them;
5 of them are directors of certain subsidiaries of the Group and
an aggregate of 12,405,000 options were granted to them; and
one of them is a consultant of a wholly owned subsidiary and
1,000,000 options were granted. In year 2003, 1,500,000 options
were waived by a grantee. During the year ended 31 December
2012, 760,000 share options granted were lapsed, no option was
forfeited or cancelled. As at 31 December 2013, no share options
remained outstanding and exercisable.

Fourth phase:

On 12 September 2005, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 69,800,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.23 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1
January 2006 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 1 January 2006 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 34,900,000 shares

From 1 January 2007 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 34,900,000 shares
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As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 12 of them are full-time employees of the Group
and an aggregate of 11,000,000 options were granted to them; 3
of them are EDs of the Company and an aggregate of 35,000,000
options were granted to them; 3 of them are INEDs of the
Company and an aggregate of 4,500,000 options were granted
to them; 2 of them are ex-executive directors of the Company
in the past 12 months and an aggregate of 18,000,000 options
were granted to them; and 2 of them are directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Group and an aggregate of 1,300,000 options
were granted to them.

All of the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2011.

Fifth phase:

On 29 January 2008, the Directors granted options to subscribe
for an aggregate of 67,500,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price at HK$0.28 per share. Those who were granted
the options can exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1
October 2008 to 6 February 2012 as below:

From 1 October 2008 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 20,250,000 shares

From 1 January 2009 to 6 February 2012 —
approximately 47,250,000 shares

As at the date of granting, among the grantees in this grant of
share options, 6 of them are full-time employees of the Group and
an aggregate of 16,000,000 options were granted to them; 4 of
them are EDs of the Company and an aggregate of 34,000,000
options were granted to them; 1 of them is INED of the Company
and 1,500,000 options were granted; 1 of them is a director of a
subsidiary of the Company and 2,000,000 options were granted;
1 of them is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and
3,000,000 options were granted; and 3 of them are consultants
of the Company and an aggregate of 11,000,000 options were
granted to them. All of the options in this phase were fully
exercised in 2011.
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Other share options

On 22 September 2003, the Group entered into an agreement
to acquire the remaining 15% minority interest of the subsidiary,
Vital Pharmaceuticals (Sichuan) Co Ltd. The remaining monetary
consideration of the acquisition amounting to approximately
HK$28.3 million representing 60% of the total consideration will be
settled at the sole option of the Company, either in cash or in new
ordinary share of the Company. On or before the following dates,
the Company may opt to pay cash or to issue new ordinary shares
by serving a notice to the seller (the “Notice”):

o 22 March 2004: HK$9,433,962;

. 22 September 2004: HK$9,433,962; and

o 22 March 2005: HK$9,433,962.

The number of shares is calculated at a price that is equal to
the higher of the average 30 day closing price of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange immediately prior to the date of the
Notice and HK$0.46 per share. The maximum number of shares
to be issued if based on HK$0.46 per share will be 61,525,839. A
conditional approval has been obtained from the Stock Exchange
for the listing of and permission to deal in the share options. All of
the options in this phase were fully exercised in 2005.

Details of the movement of share options are set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in notes 3
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/cgnmining/index.htm
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(a)

The Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) (“SFO”)) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or pursuant
to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

Number of ordinary
shares of HK$0.01

each (“Share”)

(Note 1)
BREE0.0138 T
HERRSG (RG] BE
(BftEE1)

8,500,000 (L)

Name of Director

Capacity
EEns 87

Mr. Huang Jianming Beneficial owner

mEASE EmEAA

Note:

1. The letter “L” stands for the Director’s long position in the

Shares.
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Approximate
percentage

of the total issued
share capital of the
Company
EARARE BT
RAEENMOBE 2L
0.26%

PG -

1. LI KREBSEULERDDA
F2ur »
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(b)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company had any interest and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division
7 and 8 of part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ interest and short positions
in the shares, underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2013, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following
persons/entities, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

(b)

B EXFEIN  ARBIEFER
1T B AR B B A AN 2 A Bl H AR B
AE (ERREFRRAEE) &
iy - HERNDEREST  #A
RIBRE 5 R E RO EXVEEET7
K87 BBZARG AR 1 R) S B 22 T
EREEIAR (BRRERES
MEE G REREFERE B E
BRE@ SRR SRBEEFK
HIE (D)5 3521 A B RN R IR AT
BB TAERS AR - X
R4 AR RI PR SR 2 <7 R ZA A1
SRR E R Rz TR &

NN
KA o

FERRRAERQ2ARGRAEABR
R ZEERAR

M2013F 128318 » A QAR
BEHF KB GG EI36IERTER
BERRELM RESEED
AEBEHEAMIER  THA
T /BB (TREARAIESER
THBHE) REARARRD - B
RO REHFTHEBREZS L
BIEHIBXVEPHE2 3D SR A
MARREBEZERIOAE
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Number of
shares

Company/
Name of Approximate
(Note 3)  percentage of
BHEE  shareholding

(H3E3) REMOEDL

Group member
AR/ %8

Capacity
REARER 56

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. Corporate Beneficial owner 522,526,940 (L) 15.68% (L)
(Note 1) 450,000,000 (S) 13.50% (S)

Perfect Develop Holding Inc. (FifzE1) A7) ERHAA

China Uranium Development Corporate Beneficial owner 4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89% (L)
Company Limited (Notes 3 & 5) 550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)

FEIHEFEARAR (PHEE3R5) NS EGHEA

CGNPC Uranium Resources Corporate Interest in a controlled  4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89% (L)
Co. Ltd. (Notes 2 & 3) corporation 550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)

PREREMEERERAA (MF2Rk3) 27 R EERER

China General Nuclear Power Corporate Interest in a controlled  4,728,695,652 (L) 141.89% (L)
Corporation (Note 4) corporation 550,354,609 (S) 16.51% (S)

FEEZSERRAR (MiT4) NS X EE RS

Silver Grant International Industries Corporate Beneficial owner 550,354,609 (L) 16.51% (L)
Limited (Note 5)

REEREXERAR (FF5) NG EGHEA

Notes: FdaE

1.

The issued share capital of Perfect Develop Holding Inc. is
beneficially owned as to 58.28% by Mr. Tao Lung, 30.67%
by Mr. Huang Jianming and 11.05% by Mr. Liu James
Jin. Mr. Tao Lung and Mr. Liu James Jin are founders of
the Group and former EDs of the Company. Mr. Huang
Jianming is a founder of the Group and is currently a
NED of the Company. Pursuant to a share charge dated 1
April 2011 (the “Share Charge”), Perfect Develop Holding
Inc. charged 450,000,000 Shares (“Charged Shares”)
in favour of China Uranium Development Company
Limited (“China Uranium Development”). Subsequently,
pursuant to a supplemental deed dated 18 February
2014 (“Supplemental Deed”), 225,000,000 Charged
Shares were released on 18 February 2014 and subject
to a lock-up which will expire on 31 December 2014. The
remaining 225,000,000 Charged Shares will continue to be
charged in favour of China Uranium Development until 31
December 2014. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 18 February 2014 for further details of the
Supplemental Deed.

Perfect Develop Holding
Inc. BB ITIRA D BB FE5E %
S BEXEES828%  =2H
S AEBEmEEI0.67%A K2
EEEERHEAF11.05% 1
BESLEMBRE L BALHE
Bl ATRAARIATMITES ©
EERALEERAEEAIHA
KRB AR AR EMITES ©
iR % B H A2011F4818
2R HEE (R IEER]) -
Perfect Develop Holding
Inc. AR B2 EF R A A
(THRMEER]) AXE A
K #8 7 450,000,0008% A% 15 ©
BE 1% - 1R & H #§ B2014%F2
R18E 2R ZH ([HE R
#1) » 225,000,0000% £ 38 %
B ER201452 18 B B R %
I 52 R 2014512318 &
WATZEE © $ 225,000,000
% 3 38 A% 17 18 42 48 DA R B 6
¥UREATFAEE - HE
2014F12831H - BRI # 7t
LEE—FFHE - FLER
ATF B EA2014F2 5188 K

R e
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2. CGNPC Uranium Resources Co, Ltd. (“CGNPC-URC”)
holds 100% of the issued share capital of China Uranium
Development. Therefore, CGNPC-URC is deemed to
be interested in 4,728,695,652 Shares by virtue of its
shareholding of China Uranium Development.

3. The long position represents (i) the 1,670,000,000
Shares held by China Uranium Development (ii) the
interests in the 2,608,695,652 Shares to be allotted
and issued upon the full exercise of the conversion
rights attached to the convertible bonds in the principle
amount of HK$600,000,000 at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.23 issued by the Company on 18 August 2011
(the “Convertible Bonds”), and (iii) the interest in the
450,000,000 Shares held under the Share Charge as
stated in note 1 above.

4. China General Nuclear Power Corporation (formerly known
as China Guangdong Nuclear Power Holding Corporation,
Ltd.) holds 100% of the equity interests of CGNPC-URC.
Therefore, it is deemed to be interested in the interest held
by CGNPC-URC.

B China Uranium Development and Silver Grant
International Industries Limited (“Silver Grant”) entered
into a subscription agreement dated 23 March 2012
(the “Subscription Agreement”). Upon completion of
the Subscription Agreement on 1 June 2012, China
Uranium Development had issued and Silver Grant had
subscribed for an exchangeable bond in the principal
amount of HK$776,000,000 (the “Exchangeable Bond”),
pursuant to which Silver Grant can exercise the exchange
right (the “Exchange Right”) at the exchange price of
HK$1.41 (subject to adjustment) to request China Uranium
Development to transfer to it the shares of the Company
held by China Uranium Development. Assuming that Silver
Grant fully exercise the Exchange Right, China Uranium
Development will transfer an aggregate of 550,354,609
Shares (representing approximately 16.51% of the then
existing share capital of the Company) to Silver Grant.

6. The letter “L” denotes the person’s/entity’s long position
in the shares. The letter “S” denotes the person’s/entity’s
short position in the shares.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
person as at 31 December 2013 who had an interest or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

2. PEZBERESR
(TP EXHERRE
PREMEZRER B
"100% ° & It -
EuREARE D H
RZEEMmEIEAESZ
4,728,695,6520% i1 2 25

~

) B

R 5
%@S?iﬁb)
== e

EEF

3. ZFERROPHMERRE
# B #1,670,000,0000% 2
& (NRAZRY TS ERE
0238 L2 EITEARAR
201148 AR # 1T 2 KA &
%8600,000,0005% 7T HY 7] # f%
&% ([AMRpRES ) A&
R IR R HE S T BC B R B AT
#12,608,695,6520% A% 17 = #
& R(iil) B XK R T E R D
TR#IET%EZ%O,OOO,OOO
RE R Ry i o

4. FREEZEEFRAR (FE
PREERZEEEERAAF)
BEFEZMEZERI00%K
A AMEEAEEPE
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201256 A1H %EJ‘ZE% -
EERRETRIRERE
7K 4 %E776,000,0005 7T HY A
REHF (X BRESH]D
Bt - REAIE1 418 7T (7]
FTRE) ORBREITERR
BE(IRERE])  UNERPE
i 2 8% R (A HL 88 5 A P B o
¥BEREENAARARNG -
BRERBERE2MITER R ME -
EPI%&%%*F%HW%E@%&
4 #£550,354,6090% K& 1 (47
ERARBEREFERALD
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6. LI RRZEAL HEBEU
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MR ZIKE °
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHT
TO SUBSCRIBE FOR SHARES

Save as disclosed in the annual report, none of the Company’s
Directors and chief executive (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or had been granted,
or exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares, warrants or
debentures (if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO) during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

1. Framework agreement entered into between CGNPC
Uranium Resources Co., Ltd (“CGNPC-URC”) and the
Company (the “Framework Agreement”)

On 21 October 2011, the Company and CGNPC-URC
entered into the Framework Agreement in relation to the
sale of Natural Uranium (the “Old Framework Agreement”)
(as defined in the Old Framework Agreement) by the
Group to CGNPC-URC from 28 November 2011 to 31
December 2013 (the “Effective Period”). Pursuant to the
Old Framework Agreement, the Group agreed to sell and
CGNPC-URC agreed to purchase and purchase on behalf
of certain End Users (as defined in the Old Framework
Agreement) certain amount of Natural Uranium during the
Effective Period.

As at date of the Old Framework Agreement, CGNPC-URC
is the sole shareholder of China Uranium Development,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, which holds
approximately 50.11% equity interest in the Company.
CGNPC-URC is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The transaction
contemplated under the Framework Agreement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Annual Cap Amounts of the transaction value fee
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transaction
payable for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 is
HK$3,463,200,000.
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On 15 October 2013, the Company and CGNPC-URC
entered into the New Framework Agreement in relation
to the sale of Natural Uranium (as defined in the New
Framework Agreement) by the Group to CGNPC-URC from
9 December 2013 to 31 December 2016. Pursuant to the
New Framework Agreement, the Group has agreed to sell
and CGNPC-URC has agreed to purchase and purchase
on behalf of certain End Users (as defined in the New
Framework Agreement) certain amount of Natural Uranium
during the Effective Period.

CGNPC-URC is the sole shareholder of China Uranium
Development, a controlling shareholder of the Company, which
holds approximately 50.11% equity interest in the Company.
CGNPC-URC is therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules and the transaction contemplated
under the New Framework Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage
ratios on an annual basis is more than 5% and the annual
consideration is more than HK$10,000,000, the Sale of
Natural Uranium is subject to the reporting, announcement,
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the New Framework Agreement, the transaction
value cannot exceed the following Annual Cap Amounts
(“Annual Cap Amounts”) in respect of the Continuing
Connected Transaction for each of the three years ending
on 31 December 2016.

For the year ending on
31 December 2014

HZE2014%F12H31H
IEEE ILEE

For the year ending on
31 December 2015
B ZE2015F12H31H

R2013%10A815H » A"NAFIEE A
Bz EERALIMIER G
NABBAREEFBE2013F12H
9H Z£2016F12A31H A E %
MEZHREERAM(TERLFT
ERZE) - BEFIERDE - R
EURBAREERELEMH
EZMmEERAEEERARRKE
FHREBP (TEAMIERWZH)
BEETHEZRAM -

FEZBMEZRAFBEARALN
50.11% M AN #E 25 2 AN A A E IR
PR P E SR M — IR -
Eit - R EmRA - R EZ
¥BRREBAQAIZHEEAL M
RIE TR AE14AE - FIEZR
BEEBTHET IR IBRAEAR
A HBEBER D EREF
EEEHEZSEEAB S
b R E5% c MEEREBB
10,000,000/ 7T+ 8 & X 9 th
BT EMRBBH4AZE B @R
£ RERBIREIEZIRT ©

BIEHIELEDZ  RHEBEETSE
FB 3B T 5 & =2016F12A831H
E=FAFESFORERERS
MEELFR2BE(FELRS
') -

For the year ending on
31 December 2016
HZE20165F12A31H
LFE

HK$3,463,200,000
3,463,200,0007 7T

Details of the New Framework Agreement have been disclosed
in the Company'’s circular dated 19 November 2013.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolutions passed by the
independent shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 9 December 2013,
the entering into of the New Framework Agreement, the
proposed Annual Cap Amounts and the transactions
contemplated thereunder were approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company.

HK$3,463,200,000
3,463,200,00078 7T

HK$3,463,200,000
3,463,200,000/ 7T
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ROBEITHRREIAEZ LBA
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& LR &5 RHIEZRHZEIE T #
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Revolving loan facility agreement between CGN Mining
Company Limited and China Uranium Development
Company Limited (“China Uranium Development”)

On 15 October 2012, the Company as lender and
China Uranium Development as borrower entered into
the revolving loan facility agreement (the “Old Facility
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company provides a
revolving loan facility of an amount not exceeding US$100
million (approximately HK$780 million) (the “Old Revolving
Loan”) to China Uranium Development for a term of one
year commencing from the date of passing the relevant
resolutions at the extraordinary general meeting held on 15
November 2012.

The Company is owned as to approximately 50.11% equity
interest by China Uranium Development and accordingly
China Uranium Development is a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Therefore, China Uranium Development
is a connected person of the Company. The entering into
of the Old Facility Agreement and the provision of the Old
Revolving Loan to China Uranium Development constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.45 of the
Listing Rules.

The interest rate of each Single Loan (as defined in the Old
Facility Agreement) shall be calculated from the Drawdown
Date (as defined in the Old Facility Agreement) until the
full repayment date of the Single Loan on the basis of 360
days per annum in the following ways:

(a) 1 month LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is less
than 3 months;

(b) 3 months LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is
between 3-6 months; or

(c) 6 months LIBOR+6%, if the Single Loan Period is
more than 6 months.
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If the Single Loan Period (as defined in the Old Facility
Agreement) is less than or equal to 6 months, all interest
accrued shall be paid in a lump sum on the Single Loan
Due Date (as defined in the Old Facility Agreement). If the
Single Loan Period is more than 6 months: (i) depending
on actual circumstances, in the event that the Drawdown
Date of that Single Loan falls between 21 December to 20
June (both dates inclusive), all interest accrued during the
First Interest Period shall be paid on 21 June; in the event
that the Drawdown Date of that Single Loan falls between
21 June to 20 December (both dates inclusive), all interest
accrued during the First Interest Period shall be paid on 21
December; and (ii) after the First Interest Period, depending
on actual circumstances, all interest accrued during Other
Interest Period shall be paid on 21 June and 21 December
of each year. However, all interest accrued during the Final
Interest Period shall be paid on the Single Loan Due Date.

China Uranium Development was not required to provide
any guarantee or charge any assets to the Company
under the Old Facility Agreement because the Company
considers the relevant risk of default as extremely low.

The purpose of the continuing connected transaction is
to enhance the return on investment on the Company’s
surplus cash resources while maintaining the flexibility
of cash flow for any further business development or
investment opportunities.

For the period between 1 January 2013 and 15 November
2013, the Cap Amount of the Old Revolving Loan is
US$100 million (equivalent to approximately HK$780
million).
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Furthermore, on 15 October 2013, the Company as lender
and China Uranium Development as borrower entered
into the revolving loan facility agreement (the “New Facility
Agreement”) pursuant to which the Company provides
a revolving loan facility of an amount not exceeding
US$150 million (approximately HK$1,170 million) (the “New
Revolving Loan”) to China Uranium Development for a term
commencing from 9 December 2013, the date on which
the New Facility Agreement became effective and ending
on 15 November 2014.

For the period between 9 December 2013 and 31
December 2013, the Cap Amount of the New Revolving
Loan is US$150 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,170 million).

Annual review of continuing connected transactions

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed and confirm that the

continuing connected transactions set out above have been

entered into:

1.

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
on normal commercial terms; and
in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them

on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have also reviewed these continuing

connected transactions and confirmed to the Board that these

transactions:

1.

have been approved by the Board;

have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transactions;
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3. are in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group (if
the transactions involve provision of goods or services by
the Group); and

4, have not exceeded the relevant annual caps disclosed in
previous announcements.

The Board acknowledged receipt of the auditors’ confirmation
letter dated 5 March 2014 which confirms the matters as required
by Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.

Related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
constitute continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirement set out in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Framework agreement entered into between the Company
and CGNPC Huasheng Investment Limited (“Huasheng”) for
the provision of intra-group financial services (the “Financial
Services Framework Agreement”)

On 22 January 2014, the Company and Huasheng entered into
a conditional Financial Services Framework Agreement for the
provision of intra-group financial services.

Subject to the fulfillment of the conditions precedent, the Financial
Services Framework Agreement shall have a term of three
financial years commencing from 1 January 2014 and ending on
31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the Financial Services Framework Agreement, the
Group may from time to time deposit sums with Huasheng. The
terms and conditions of such deposits shall be subject to arm’s
length negotiations between the Group and Huasheng. Huasheng
shall pay interest on such deposits. The interest payable by
Huasheng to the Group shall be calculated with reference to
the deposits interest rate as announced by other independent
commercial banks in Hong Kong (such as The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited or Bank of China (Hong
Kong) Limited) from time to time but at any time such interest
rate shall be (i) equal to or higher than the relevant interest rate
offered by Huasheng to other subsidiaries of the CGNPC (other
than members of the Group) in similar arrangement; and (ii)
equal to or higher than the deposits interest rate as announced
by other independent commercial banks in Hong Kong (such
as The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
or Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited) from time to time in
similar arrangement. The payment terms of the interest shall be
determined between the Group and Huasheng upon making
deposits.
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The estimated annual caps (the “Annual Caps”) for the maximum
outstanding balance for the deposits placed by the Group with
Huasheng for the three financial years ending on 31 December
2016 are set out below:

For the year ending on
31 December 2014 31 December 2015
B Z20155F

12831 B LLEE

HZE20145F
12831HLLEE

For the year ending on
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B ZE2016512A31H L= EH BFE -
AEBENERZEFREDER MG
FEER (TFELR] &M :

For the year ending on
31 December 2016
B Z20165F
12A31HLEEE

US$178 million
178,000,000% 7T

US$178 million
178,000,000% 7T

As Huasheng is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGNPC, the ultimate
controller indirectly holding approximately 50.11% equity interests
in the Company, the entering into of the Financial Services
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder (including the intra-group financial services and the
Annual Caps) constitute a continuing connected transaction on the
part of the Company and are subject to reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the relevant percentage
ratios exceed 25% but are below 75%, the entering into of the
Financial Services Framework Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the intra-group financial
services and the Annual Caps) shall also constitute a major
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and will be
subject to announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
at the extraordinary general meeting.

Supplemental Deed to Subscription Agreement

Reference is made to the announcement dated 18 February 2014
in relation to the Supplemental Deed to Subscription Agreement.
The parties to the Subscription Agreement have on 18 February
2014 entered into the Supplemental Deed to vary certain terms of
the Subscription Agreement. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised
words used in this section shall have the same meaning as
defined in the circular dated 23 May 2011 and the announcement
dated 18 February 2014 published by the Company.

US$178 million
178,000,000% 7T
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Reasons for entering into the Supplemental Deed

1.

As stated in the circular dated 23 May 2011, the
Subscriber would like to develop the Company into a
uranium resources investment and trading platform,
including through the acquisition of assets. It also states
that the competition in the pharmaceutical industry faced
by the Company is keen, which affects the financial
performance of the Company. In the foreseeable future,
consolidation is expected to take place in the markets
of food, pharmaceuticals and properties in China with
substantial pressure existing in the operating environments.
It is the original intention of the Subscriber that when
such new business venture(s) and investments become
reasonably self-sustainable, the Subscriber will re-consider
its business options, including whether to dispose all of the
existing business and assets. At the latest practicable date,
no such investment opportunity has been identified and/or
become materialised. The Subscriber is of the view that the
current business model is not reasonably self-sustainable
and disposal of all the remaining old business and assets
is not a good option.

The Founders and the Controlling Shareholder agreed to
enter into the Supplemental Deed and provide, inter alia,
the partial lock-up as a show of confidence and support
to the Company. The Supplemental Deed can continue to
provide assurance to financial condition of the Company
and its financial viability, inter alia, the Subsidiaries
Value during the extended period, and to reflect the
continuing participation and commitment of the Controlling
Shareholder as a shareholder of the Company.

The Board is of the view that the Supplemental Deed
would be in the best interests of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 42%
— five largest suppliers combined 99%

Sales
— the largest customer 93%
— five largest customers combined 96%

CGNPC-URC, the largest customer of the Company, is the sole
shareholder of China Uranium Development, the controlling
shareholder of the Company. CGNPC-URC is a connected person
of the Company. Mr. Yu Zhiping, an ED and chief executive officer
of the Company (re-designated from the non-executive chairman
to chief executive officer and ED on 5 December 2013), Mr. He
Zuyuan, an ED and executive vice president of the Company (re-
designated from chief executive officer to executive vice president
on 5 December 2013, Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, the non-executive
chairman (appointed on 5 December 2013), Mr. Wei Qiyan, a NED
(resigned on 5 December 2013) and Ms. Jin Yunfei (resigned
on 5 December 2013) are all the directors of China Uranium
Development and/or the director and/or the senior management
of CGNPC-URC at different material time throughout 2013. Save
as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors, the controlling shareholders
of the Company and their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes or may
cause any significant competition with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or
may have with the Group.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group has not made any charitable donations.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at
the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report, the
Company believe that the number of securities of the Company
which are in the hands of the public is higher than the relevant
prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 have been audited by Messrs. SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Zhou Zhenxing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 5 March 2014
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SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

o
Shi ne‘ZOan

TO THE MEMBERS OF CGN MINING COMPANY LIMITED
FREZEXARATF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CGN
Mining Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 76 to
187, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

B M B

iR A 8)

R R A
I
BRI

BHhEZEXERAF
2EERR
(RASHEBEMRIZARDE])

R ERENFE76E187TAZHF EX
BEARLQR ([ERQR)) REWERQF]
(ATHBIEER]) 2GeMBEHRE
ZEFRE VB HREBIENR20136F12 31
BRGEMBRARE  RBEEZBILF
EZHRABERE GoBmkEME2EA
WHE HRARSEHRREAESR
EX URFESHBERBERHEAMH
AR} o

ESHGREVBRR2ZEE

BERRIEFZEEDNRBEGHMLE
B2 BEMBREERREE (R A
B) 2 BB TEREZEREWHRE
REEMAFHEINEARTASETE
ERRUBEZ AR - RS MG
BERTFERRKRFRBERMSI B 2E
KEE R R -



74

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEARAF

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB RS

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony

Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
5 March 2014
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E  TAT

Turnover e 8 796,594 1,232,287
Cost of sales SHE AR (643,582) (1,031,057)
Gross profit EF 153,012 201,230
Other operating income HABALZUA 8 20,730 54,255
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENB AR Z WS 31 6 -
Selling and distribution expenses HERD A (9,569) (34,526)
Administrative expenses THAX (90,271)  (130,369)
Impairment loss recognised in respect  FERME - BE &
of property, plant and equipment HEREEE 18 (942) -
Changes in fair value of investment WEME N EE
properties 19 (12,646) 5,853
Finance costs BB R 10 (27,292) (25,930)
Profit before taxation R 75 B4 ) 33,028 70,513
Income tax expense FriSfisz i 11 (16,978) (51,866)
Profit for the year R[S g A 12 16,050 18,647
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: ~ T5I| A T B(L ARG &5 F
(EB#8) :
Owners of the Company PIN/NCIEZZ SN 16,365 18,660
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A (315) (13)
16,050 18,647
Earnings per share BRAR 14
Basic YN HKO0.49 HK0.56
centsiBfll  centsi#l
Diluted e HK0.49 HK0.56

centsi#E{l  centsiH1ll
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
FER TAET

Profit for the year REEHH 16,050 18,647

Other comprehensive income Hitb 2 E

Items that may be reclassified subsequently — HEiEs{r]EZ iHE

to profit or loss: PBmiyEE -
Exchange differences arising on translating BERINETSEE 2

foreign operations EHER

Gain arising during the year NEFEE 2 WE 5,239 1,773
Other comprehensive income for the year AEFHM2E S 5,239 1,773
Total comprehensive income for the year REEZ2ENTERE 21,289 20,420
Total comprehensive income (expense) THALTEEARFEE 2R E

for the year attributable to: (%) 1858 -

Owners of the Company RATHB A 21,505 20,429

Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A (216) (9)

21,289 20,420
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e BEIR &

As at 31 December 2013 2013125318

2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Intangible assets mPEE 17 212 266
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 18 45,578 49,878
Investment properties KB 19 73,312 83,530
Prepaid lease payments on land T+ b (E R RETEL
use rights MEFIAE 20 19,265 19,751
Goodwill [EES 21 - -
138,367 153,425
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 22 21,590 11,548
Loan receivable from a shareholder RN —Z RO ER 23 248,082 775,174
Trade and other receivables JE UK AR 3R N B R W ER IR 24 213,456 266,611
Prepaid lease payments on land T AR ERIE
use rights 20 409 397
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRIRE 25
- pledged — BHEA - 644
— unpledged — IR 1,030,491 604,671
1,514,028 1,659,045
Total assets EEHE 1,652,395 1,812,470
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables FESTBR R R EL Ath AT RUE 26 34,586 220,066
Value added tax payable FETIZ(ETR 289 943
Income tax payable FER RS 7,582 27,190
42,457 248,199
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,471,571 1,410,846
Total assets less current liabilities EEHAERRBERS 1,609,938 1,564,271
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e BEIR &

As at 31 December 2013 201312 A31H

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000
F#E  TAT

Capital and reserves BEARK #E

Share capital N 27 33,326 33,326

Reserves e 1,043,452 1,021,947
Equity attributable to owners of AATEE AEEERS

the Company 1,076,778 1,055,273
Non-controlling interests IR ERS 1,798 2,014
Total equity WS 1,078,576 1,057,287
Non-current liabilities ERBARE

Convertible bonds AT AR B 28 520,705 493,413

Deferred tax liabilities BEEFRIEAE 29 10,657 13,571

531,362 506,984
1,609,938 1,564,271

The consolidated financial statements on pages 76 to 187 were  H W F76E187TH 2 A M B HRE R
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 5 201463 A58 & & = € 4t/ & % # T

March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by: B WAHTIIEBSRERES
Yu Zhiping REF He Zuyuan fi/# T

Director EF Director %
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADRRE AR

Equity
component of  Exchange Share Properties Non-
Share Share  convertible translation  options  Reserve  Retained revaluation controlling
capital  premium bonds  reserve reserve Fund  eamings  reserve Total interests Total

TERES R NEER FER
k& ROEE hagt  EXRE e ®BEEE REEY i it Bi Azt
HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TET  TER Tén TER TR TEn  TEr  TEn  TEn  TEn  TER
(Note)
(&)

At 1January 2013 R2013E1A18 33,326 657939 138,827 77702 154 34,495 103,819 9,011 1,085,273 2,014 1,057,287
Proft (loss) for the year ~ AEE %7 (B1) - - - - - - 16,365 - 16,365 (315) 16,050
Other comprehensive ~~ REEEA,

income for the year 2ENE
Exchenge diferences #8851 £%

aisngontransaing  EEZESR

foreign operations ZR

Gain arising TFEELEL

during the year s - - - 5,140 - - - - 5,140 9 5,239
Total comprehensive  AEELE

income (expense) s (Fx)

for the year 55 = - - 50 - - 16365 - A5 (26) 21289

At31 December 2013 #2013 124318 33,326 657939 138,827 82,842 154 34495 120,184 9,011 1,076,778 1,798 1,078,576
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AR A
Equity
componentof  Exchange Share
Share Share convertible  translation options
capital premium reserve reserve

ik
HK$000  HK$000
T TEn

At1 January 2012 Ro01251A18 33326 657939 138,827 75,933 164

Properties Non-
Reserve  Refained  revaluation controlling
eannings reserve interests

&R : it

HK$000  HK$000 i HK§'000

T ThT ] 7 BT
(Note)

344% 85,159 9011 1,034,844 2023 1,036,867

Proft oss) for the year ~ REE AT (&) - - - - - - 18660 - 18680 (13 18647
Other comprehensive ~ REEEA,

income for the year 2ENE
Exchange diferences #8851 £%

arising on ranslating ~ E4£ 2 E5

foreign operations ZR

Gain arising TFEELEL

during the year e = - - 1,769 - - = = 1,769 4 17713
Total comprehensive  AEELE

income (expense) s (Fx)

for the year Pt - - = 1,769 - - 18,660 - 20,429 9 20,420

At31 December 2012 H2012412A31A 33326 657939 138,827 77,702 164

3449 103819 9011 1005273 2,014 1,067,287

Note:

Subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) have
appropriated 10% of the profit to reserve fund. The reserve fund
is required to be retained in the accounts of the subsidiaries for
specific purposes.

izt : RAPEARAME (THE] KZ2
Mt A R A 2 10% A B E
T BEESARENMB LR ZER
BAERERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
TAET TAT

OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation FRBERT R A 33,028 70,513
Adjustments for: FEEES
Amortisation of intangible assets HiEmEEEE 61 60
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments HeH (TR E R
on land use rights 402 397
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment YE  BEMEETE 4,855 6,340
Changes in fair value of investment properties KREMENRBEES 12,646 (5,853)
Finance costs EhE AR 27,292 25,930
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR Z S (6) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of TR - BB L&
property, plant and equipment BIEEE 942 -
Bank interest income RITHFBHA (12,671) (24,594)
Loan interest income from a shareholder —ZREZERFBWA (7,854) (5,479)
Interest income from overdue trade receivable 460 B FE WA BR 5% 2 ML SR A (158) -
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWME - BEREEL
plant and equipment BB (W) F58 193 (19,289)
Recovery of indemnified taxation W el BT IE = (2,960)
Write-down of inventories MR E 3,214 3,494
Reversal of write-down of inventories BEMATE = (1,154)
Operating cash flow before movements in EBEESEBAHI 2
working capital BEREME 61,944 47,405
(Increase) decrease in inventories & (35) mo (12,672) 394,705
Decrease (increase) in trade and JE LS BR K R L At FE R IR
other receivables R (12h0) 49,021 (203,531)
Increase in tax recoverable AU B A TE I N — (3,700)
Decrease in trade and other payables JE - BR SRR EL A B A SR IBDR A (185,231)  (205,841)
Decrease in value added tax payable FERTIEERUR S (654) (3,244)
Cash (used in) from operations LB (FTR) BHEe (87,592) 25,794
Hong Kong tax paid BREBHIE (39,777) (10,566)
The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (paid) refund (Bf) BERFBREBEMESH (111) 7,714
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REXK (FTA) FIBRLFE

ACTIVITIES (127,480) 22,942
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2013 2012
201345 20124
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BaE FExT FBT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BRETEH
Loans repayment received from B —RIRR 2 BEFUER
a shareholder 1,467,487 -
Loan interest received from a shareholder B — R R 2 B F 8 13,164 -
Bank interest income received BEUERTTR BULA 12,294 28,280
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  MENMRE
plant and equipment Frisa0g 388 31,299
Loans advanced to a shareholder MR AR 2 B (940,078)  (775,174)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB % - lE REE (827) (4,543)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HEMNBAR SR FE
subsidiaries (net of bank balances (MBHEZRITET K
and cash disposed of) B/E) 31 (653) -
Balance of proceed received for I EHEB A RFEHRIE
disposal of a subsidiary “Ees - 35,800
Decrease in pledged bank balances BRI TSR D 644 34
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING REEEFE (FrE)
ACTIVITIES HEFEE 552,419 (684,304)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Recovery of indemnified taxation W EImERE - 2,960
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  B&5EBI 85 & 48 - 2,960
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH HEeRBLZEHEEREM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRY) #5m 424,939 (658,402)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REVZHERES
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR ZEIEH 604,671 1,262,857
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes &R B s & 881 216
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END MRELKZEHEESNESZEIER »
OF THE YEAR, represented B IR RIT AT R &

by unpledged bank balances and cash 1,030,491 604,671
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1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liabilities. The shares
of the Company are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent is A Bl
¥ REAMR A A (China Uranium Development Company
Limited) (“China Uranium Development”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of REZMEZREAR /AT (CGNPC Uranium Resources
Co. Ltd.) (“*CGNPC-URC”), which is in turn a subsidiary
of FEEZEREABR AT (China General Nuclear Power
Corporation) (“CGNPC”) (formerly known as ™ B & &
% & % @ A R 2 7 (China Guangdong Nuclear Power
Holding Corporation, Ltd.)). CGNPC is the ultimate parent
of the Company. Both CGNPC-URC and CGNPC were
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are selling,
distributing and manufacturing of pharmaceutical and
food products, property investment and trading of natural
uranium.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while the functional currency
of the Company is United States dollars (“USD”). As the
Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors of the
Company consider that it is appropriate to present the
consolidated financial statements in HKS.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & E2013FE 128431 B 1L FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”) and Interpretations
(“Int(s)”), issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011
Cycle issued in 2012

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to Consolidated Financial Statements,
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and Disclosure
and HKFRS 12 of Interests in Other Entities:

Transition Guidance

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (revised 2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (revised 2011) Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures
HK(IFRIC*) - INT 20 Stripping Costs in the Production

Phase of a Surface Mine

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a “statement
of comprehensive income” is renamed as a “statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income” and
an “income statement” is renamed as a “statement of
profit or loss”. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate but
consecutive statements. However, the amendments to
HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income to
be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 7 for the
first time in the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 7
require entities to disclose information about recognised
financial instruments that are set off in accordance
with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and
recognised financial instruments that are subject to an
enforceable master netting agreement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether the financial instruments are set off
in accordance with HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 have been applied
retrospectively. As the Group does not have any offsetting
arrangements or any master netting agreements in place,
the application of the amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (revised 2011)
and HKAS 28 (revised 2011) together with the amendments
to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding the
transitional guidance. HKAS 27 (revised 2011) is not
applicable to the Group as it deals only with separate
financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK (SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control such that an investor controls an investee if and
only if it has (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns. As a
result of the initial application of HKFRS 10, the directors of
the Company made an assessment whether the Group has
control over its investees at the date of initial application
and concluded that the application of HKFRS 10 does not
result in any change in control conclusions.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated structured
entities. In general, the application of HKFRS 12 has
resulted in more extensive disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. Details are set out in notes 36.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of
guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures
about fair value measurements for both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except for
share-based payment transactions within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions within
the scope of HKAS 17 Leases and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value.

HKFRS 13 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

HKFRS 13 has been applied prospectively as of the
beginning of the annual period and resulted in additional
disclosure as set out in notes 7 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements. Other than the additional disclosures,
the application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36
Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21

Financial Instruments®
Regulatory Deferral Accounts*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 Cycle?

Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
and Transition Disclosures®

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

Levies'

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014,
¥ HKFRS 9, as amended in December 2013, amended the

mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9. The mandatory
effective date is not specified in HKFRS 9 but will be
determined when the outstanding phases are finalised.
However, application of HKFRS 9 is permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2016.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of the/other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS
9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in the
financial statements.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

° All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at
their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present subsequent
changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

° HKFRS 9 introduces a new model which is
more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk
management activities undertaken by companies
when hedging their financial and non-financial
risk exposures. As a principle-based approach,
HKFRS 9 looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial items. The
new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes
as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39,
it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics
that are designed solely for accounting purposes.
The new model also includes eligibility criteria
but these are based on an economic assessment
of the strength of the hedging relationship. This
can be determined using risk management data.
This should reduce the costs of implementation
compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting
because it reduces the amount of analysis that
is required to be undertaken only for accounting
purposes.

The effective date of HKFRS 9 is not yet determined.
However, earlier application is permitted.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Regarding the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions
of ‘vesting condition’ and ‘market condition’; and (ii) add
definitions for ‘performance condition’ and ‘service
condition” which were previously included within the
definition of ‘vesting condition’. The amendments
to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July
2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
should be measured at fair value at each reporting date,
irrespective of whether the contingent consideration is
a financial instrument within the scope of HKFRS 9 or
HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes in fair
value (other than measurement period adjustments) should
be recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to
HKFRS 3 are effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to
disclose the judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria to operating segments, including
a description of the operating segments aggregated
and the economic indicators assessed in determining
whether the operating segments have ‘similar economic
characteristics’; and (ii) clarify that a reconciliation of the
total of the reportable segments’ assets to the entity’s
assets should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13
clarify that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential
amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove
the ability to measure short-term receivables and payables
with no stated interest rate at their invoice amounts without
discounting, if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove
perceived inconsistencies in the accounting for
accumulated depreciation/amortisation when an item of
property, plant and equipment or an intangible asset is
revalued. The amended standards clarify that the gross
carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying
amount after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management
entity providing key management personnel services to
a reporting entity is a related party of the reporting entity.
Consequently, the reporting entity should disclose as
related party transactions the amounts incurred for the
service paid or payable to the management entity for the
provision of key management personnel services. However,
disclosure of the components of such compensation is not
required.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs,
which are summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does
not apply to the accounting for the formation of all types
of joint arrangement in the financial statements of the joint
arrangement itself.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of
the portfolio exception for measuring the fair value of a
group of financial assets and financial liabilities on a net
basis includes all contracts that are within the scope of,
and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS 39 or HKFRS
9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions of
financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and
HKFRS 3 are not mutually exclusive and application of
both standards may be required. Consequently, an entity
acquiring investment property must determine whether:

(a) the property meets the definition of investment
property in terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business
combination under HKFRS 3.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities

The amendments to HKFRS 10 introduce an exception
to consolidating subsidiaries for an investment entity,
except where the subsidiaries provide services that relate
to the investment entity’s investment activities. Under the
amendments to HKFRS 10, an investment entity is required
to measure its interests in subsidiaries at fair value through
profit or loss.

To qualify as an investment entity, certain criteria have to
be met. Specifically, an entity is required to:

o obtain funds from one or more investors for the
purpose of providing them with professional
investment management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially
all of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments to HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
have been made to introduce new disclosure requirements
for investment entities.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Investment Entities (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014 with early application permitted. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will have no effect on the Group as the
Company is not an investment entity.

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans -
Employee Contributions

The amendments to HKAS 19 simplify the accounting for
contributions that are independent of the number of years
of employee service, for example, employee contributions
that are calculated according to a fixed percentage of
salary. Specifically, contributions that are linked to services
are attributed to periods of services as a negative benefit.
The amendments to HKAS 19 specifies that such negative
benefit are attributed in the same way as the gross
benefit, i.e. attribute to periods of services under the plan’s
contribution formula or on a straight-line basis.

Besides, the amendments also state that if the contributions
are independent of the number of years of employee
service, such contributions may be recognised as a
reduction of the service cost as they fall due.

The amendments to HKAS 19 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 with early
application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 19 will have no
material impact on the Group.

2.

FEREHITIREETEBY
BREER ([FBI K
HEH]) )

A=A

EEMEMARERZHTREE
AIEBMBEREER (&)

BB BIHEERFE 105 - BE
HEHEERFE 120 R EE S
ERIFE27RREEREIEETA (B)

BBV B MEERE109 - BE
MRS ENEI12RRBEEGS
AR E2798 2 (& ET 2014451 A
Btz &FB 2 FEHREER -
WARREER - ARG EEHE
B ARARELFRETE
HitERZEETHAEETE
EXTE-

BB B ERIF 199 15T R RE
& Fat &) — 1B R L

HFR G EFE19REFT AEIL
HEBRGFHREBZHTZA
B PInEBEARET M E
EBDLAE - FhlZ2 - BRH
BRENERTIBRIRE FHER
BEBEAN - BEGEERE195
ERI AR - ZFEREMENTIZ
H@mh—HKnaABE AR
BB RAARIREREE
R ARASFH

BESh - B FERT INELEA - fis L 5K
HESRBEMER  NZSMH
FRA] IR B A B A 75 BR 75 AR AR
TR

BB ERF195E T AR
2014F7R1B S v B HAB 2 FE
BRI AR - WAliRFEA ©

ARPEEEY  BRAEEG
EQF1ORETAHAKETE
ELBEARE -



100

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEARAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE20135FE 128310 L FE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing application
issues relating to the offset of financial assets and financial
liabilities requirements. Specifically, the amendments clarify
the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off” and “simultaneous realisation and settlement”.

The amendments to HKAS 32 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with early
application permitted and require retrospective application.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the amendments to HKAS 32 may result
in more disclosures being made with regard to offsetting
financial assets and financial liabilities in the future.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 require disclosures on
additional information about the fair value measurement
when the recoverable amount of impaired assets is based
on fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount is fair value less costs of disposal, an entity shall
disclose the level of the fair value hierarchy within which
the fair value measurement of the asset or cash generating
unit is catergorised in its entirety. The Group is required to
make additional disclosures for Level 2 and Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy:

o a description of the valuation techniques used to
measure the fair value less costs of disposals. If
there is any change in valuation techniques, the fact
and the reason should also be disclosed;

° each key assumption on which management has
based its determination of fair value less costs of
disposal;
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets (Continued)

° the discount rates used in the current and previous
measurement if fair value less costs of disposal is
measured using a present value technique.

The amendments to HKAS 36 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier
application permitted, provided HKFRS 13 is also applied,
and require retrospectively application.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the amendments to HKAS 36 may result in additional
disclosures being made with regard to the impairment
assessment on non-financial assets.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies

HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 provides guidance on when to recognise
a liability for a levy imposed by a government for levies that
are accounted for in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and levies
where the timing and amount is certain. Under HK(IFRIC)
— Int 21, a liability is recognised for a levy when the
activity that triggers payment as identified by the relevant
legislation occurs. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 excludes income tax
within the scope of HKAS 12 Income Taxes, fines and other
penalties.

HK(IFRIC) — Int 2 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014 with earlier application permitted
and require retrospectively application.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties that are measured at fair values, as explained
in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.
an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary
prepares its financial statements using accounting policies
other than those adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to
that subsidiary’s financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with
the Group’s accounting policies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power
over the investee; (ii) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
Group’s returns. When the Group has less than a majority
of the voting rights of an investee, power over the investee
may be obtained through: (i) a contractual arrangement
with other vote holders; (ii) rights arising from other
contractual arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and
potential voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above,
based on all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control of the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable
to them), and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest, with any resulting difference being
recognised as a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to
the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below). Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property when there is a change in use, as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in properties revaluation reserve.
The properties revaluation reserve in respect of that item
will be transferred directly to retained earnings when it is
derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial asset and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including loan receivable from
a shareholder, trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

Obijective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest and principal payments; or
° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period ranging from 25 to 180
days, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance amount are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
convertible bonds are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the
liability component, representing the conversion option for
the holder to convert the bonds into equity, is included in
equity (equity component of convertible bonds).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in equity
component of convertible bonds until the conversion option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in equity
component of convertible bonds will be transferred to
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry date, the balance stated in equity component of
convertible bonds will be released to the retained earnings.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the option.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity components are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise
the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash as defined above.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than impairment of goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
(other than impairment of goodwill set out in the
accounting policy of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial

involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

3.

FESHBE 2)

BAEBEANEERELEEZ
HEEE (REXEHEEREZE
TBGR) ()

RERBOBEBER  BE
(HBEMBE L EM) cFREER
AR EHAWE SR KB
e ESENZEEETESR
FREFETEEIAREEET
HZEE (KMMBEEM) RE
BECIREE-  BE2RERSIE
BB PO U 2 P ERR

W R

WHEDRABERGTELEEY
ERHERREZAAEFE
BRI R ABRR S E BT H -

HEEMmIWBEIREMRN K
RERBEEHBER NIIMA K
HFEEEMRIRTER

. AEEEHEREMZE
REBD B o [ R T
8

. AKEYEHEHE MR
BREE—HRAZEAEMN
HHREEES2E T8
REEHERNERE

e

°
=
S
Bl
K>
i
anp
(\\y
=
jui

o

BB EENERA
MAREE &

[ ]
& X

©  RFEEABTEEZK
e TLE ST R



116

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEARAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE20135FE 128310 L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably).

Equity settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees (on or before 7
November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005)

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the value of
options granted. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options
which lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are
deleted from the register of outstanding options.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees (after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 January 2005)

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
options reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will continue to be held in share options reserve.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the
general principles above.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

3.

FESHBE 2)

BiIE ()

EEHRBEEERABBIRER R
EHRERFCEMIERER
2 HE (RBOE)  REHRE
BREXEREENEFERZH

Y -

BEXERBARBREEZFERBR
7N 5 B TR e H P A SR B R
CEEEERBERAEELE
ZHBIRR »

A ERAAAEEAFENK
BYENELER AR ESREER
HEEMS  %FWEMNKRHEE
TERABBEHEEZIED - R
FRBRIBKYL - EREME
ATHERRAKEENEHRA
(BRX% B R ERERREMmIFEB
HEHBREREMEMBESNEBA
HMOKERN) ARBE - GR8
REBE TR - 5 BRETK
o Al BRI E YR EELER IR
BERREEREEERE D —
fRIRAIGTE -

BIEA MR AE R TR R R sn FERR - IfE
fied B HA B AR A R TR SR X H A 2
WASEZRNESER 2HEB
B BT SORE TR R IR0 Rl
%Eﬂéﬁw%ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁéﬁ
P o fid BN HA B TR SR AE 7R IR A
EBAETNS et REME
o AIBBREFTATEGHE
FHERIE o



120

CGN Mining Company Limited
hEZIEEARAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & ZE20135FE 128310 L FE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period, except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised directly in
other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting date. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange translation reserve.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments on land use rights” in the consolidated statement
of financial position and is amortised over the lease term
on a straight-line basis, except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

Retirement benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of tangible
assets for the purpose of impairment assessment, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use
the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on the
characteristics of inputs, as follows:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective
fair value measurement.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses reported and disclosures made in
the consolidated financial statements. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements.

Income taxes

In respect of the Hong Kong Profits Tax under inquiries by
the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”) as
mentioned in note 11, management judgment was required
in assessing the likelihood of success in defending its
position that the income derived was non-Hong Kong
sourced and therefore, was not subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax and no provision for profit tax was made in prior
years. The provision of income taxes was reviewed on an
ongoing basis. In order to avoid the significant costs in
handling the tax disputes in future, during the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group reached a settlement
agreement with the IRD including interest and penalty
in aggregate amount of approximately HK$32,732,000.
Details of which was set out in note 11.
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4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities from
investment properties that were measured using the fair
value model, the directors of the Company reviewed the
Group’s investment property portfolios and concluded that
the Group’s investment properties in the PRC were held
under a business model whose obijective is to consume
substantively all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment property over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value
model recovered entirely through sale was rebutted. As
a result, the Group continues to recognise deferred tax
liabilities on change in fair value of investment properties
on the basis that the entire carrying amounts of the
properties will be recovered through use.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Estimated useful life and depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual values. The
determination of the useful lives and residual values
involved management’s estimation. The Group assessed
annually the residual value and the useful life of the
property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differed from the original estimate, such a difference may
impact the depreciation in the year and the estimate would
be changed in the future period. As at 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment was
approximately HK$45,578,000 (2012: HK$49,878,000).

Impairment loss recognised in respect of trade receivables

The Group performed ongoing credit evaluations of its
customers and adjusted credit limits based on payment
history and the customer’s current credit-worthiness, as
determined by the review of their current credit information.
The Group continuously monitored collections and
payments from its customers and maintained a provision
for estimated credit losses based upon its historical
experience and any specific customer collection issues
that had been identified. Credit losses had historically
been within the Group’s expectations and the Group
would continue to monitor the collections from customers
and maintain an appropriate level of estimated credit
losses. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount
of trade receivables was approximately HK$203,231,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$4,344,000 (2012: carrying amount of approximately
HK$251,091,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,212,000).

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of other receivables

When there was objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group took into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss was measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows were less than
expected, a material impairment loss might arise. As at
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables was approximately
HK$10,225,000 (2012: HK$15,520,000).

Write down of inventories

The directors of the Company reviews an aging analysis at
the end of each reporting period, and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are
no longer suitable for use in production. The management
estimates the net realisable value for finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review
on a product-by-product basis at end of each reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete items. As at
31 December 2013, the carrying amount of inventories
was approximately HK$21,590,000 (net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$3,214,000) (2012:
carrying amount of approximately HK$11,548,000, net of
accumulated impairment loss of approximately HKS: nil).

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The impairment loss for property, plant and equipment
was recognised for the amounts by which the carrying
amounts exceed their recoverable amounts, in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy. The recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment are the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use.
In determining the recoverable amount, use of estimates
such as the future revenue and discount rates is required.
As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was approximately HK$45,578,000
(net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$54,907,000) (2012: carrying amount of approximately
HK$49,878,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$53,965,000).

Fair value of investment properties

At the end of the reporting period, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the
fair value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation
which involves certain estimates of market conditions. In
relying on the valuation report, the directors of the Company
have exercised their judgement and are satisfied that
the assumptions used in the valuation have reflected the
current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group’s
investment properties being recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of investment properties measured
at fair value at 31 December 2013 was approximately
HK$73,312,000 (2012: HK$83,530,000).

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurement and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets including investment properties
are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
The directors of the Company are responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The directors of the Company work closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

Income taxes

As at 31 December 2013, no deferred tax assets has
been recognised on the tax losses and deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$87,786,000
(2012: HK$76,778,000) and HK$67,280,000 (2012:
HK$62,026,000) respectively due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred
tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
The directors of the Company determine the deferred
taxation assets based on the enacted or substantially
enacted tax rates and the best knowledge of profit
projections of the Group for coming years during which the
deferred taxation assets are expected to be utilised. The
directors of the Company will review the assumptions and
profit projections by the end of the reporting period.

4.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes convertible bonds disclosed in note 28, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained earnings. The directors of the
Company review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital, and take appropriate actions to
adjust the Group’s capital structure.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

5.

EXEBEE

AEBEREER  AERAS
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2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including bank B R EWGRIA
balances and cash) (BREBTEENRIRS) 1,485,263 1,641,060
Financial liabilities SREE
At amortised cost R SERC AR 554,784 713,034
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7

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
receivable from a shareholder, trade and other receivables,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables and
convertible bonds. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from purchases by the Group in currencies
other than the entities’ functional currencies. In addition,
certain portion of bank balances and cash, trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BBEREEEERBEE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#)

Currency risk (Continued) ExEE (&)

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the TRERASEBERREBRES
end of the reporting period to currency risk arising from RECHREKEESBENS
recognised monetary assets or liabilities denominated in a EREENEEEUIIN BB
currency other than the functional currency of the entity to HEEEZRR -

which they relate.

Renminbi
uUSD’000 (“RMB”’)’000
FEx ARBTF T
Presented in: 2013 2012 2013 2012
IRA 20135 2012%F 2013% 20124
Assets BE - 460 841 497
Liabilities =L 715 - 1,230 1,000
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency R E IR R NS SRR o
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign N BEBERINERME - I
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant REZEREZRBE PERINEE

foreign currency exposure should the need arise. Bz o
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7

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of RMB
and USD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
and 0.5% (2012: 5% and 0.5%) increase and decrease
in HK$ against the RMB and USD respectively. 5% and
0.5% (2012: 5% and 0.5%) are the sensitivity rates used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represent management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% or 0.5% (2012: 5% or 0.5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit (2012: increase in post-tax
profit) where HK$ strengthen 5% or 0.5% (2012: 5% or
0.5%) against the relevant currency. For a 5% or 0.5%
(2012: 5% or 0.5%) weakening of HK$ against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the profit.

usD
e

2013

20135
HK$’000
FHT

i Mk & R

Profit or loss

21

MHEEREEEERBUR
(#)

BER (&)

AEBTEEHARBEETE
R -

TRFINAEBH BT BIL
ARBRETHEREZBES%R
0.5% (2012%F : 5% & 0.5%)
ZHREE ERELERME
EER A B IME R 1E A 23R
EREACBERE  REEEE
HIONEERRAREEE S EES
FriEstfl - UREDMEREH
REEZINETEEREE KRR
hE B A R R INE B R 2 5%
800.5% (20124 : 5%80.5%)
SEEHCREAE - TXZIE
BENMOBETHBEEEHES%
80.5% (20124 : 5%80.5%)
T 48 BBk B 18 05 7 2 FHIE (2012
F-BRBRRENZFR) o B
TR B E® R {E5%0.5%
(2012%F : 5%5k0.5%) @ # & &
BAERAER 2 SR o

RMB
AR

2013
2013%F
HK$°000
FERT

2012
20124
HK$'000
T

2012
20124
HK$'000
T

(13) 21 26

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

EEERN ARFHERZER
I &R RFERRER - WEERED
36 AR BB SMNE R Bz
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to its variable-rate bank balances and loan
receivable from a shareholder and is also exposed to fair
value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank deposits
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments including bank balances and cash and loan
receivable from a shareholder at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
(2012: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2012: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$6,188,000 (2012: HK$6,176,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
bank balance and loan receivables.

7.
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7

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverability of each individual trade debt at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk
attributable to the loan receivable from a shareholder to be
insignificant as the shareholder has good creditworthiness
and the loan has been fully settled subsequent to the end
of reporting period.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
100% (2012: 100%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2013.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Besides, the Group has concentration of credit risk as
96% (2012: 95%) of the total trade receivables as at
31 December 2013 was due from the Group’s largest
customer within natural uranium trading segment. However,
the directors of the Company consider the credit risk to be
insignificant as the major debtor was intermediate holding
company with good creditworthiness.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
based on the agreed repayment terms. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate curve at the end of the reporting period.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. HEXEREEBEEERBEK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (%)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESRR (&)
Liquidity risk tables THBE T EESF

Weighted
average Carrying Total
interest amountat  Less than undiscounted
rate 31 December 1 year 1-5 years cash flows

RK12A318 REH

MEFIGFE  ZREE 1R 1-58 BeREHAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

% TET S S TEL

2013 20135
Non-derivative financial ETESRER

liabilities

Trade and other payables EREET R N/A 34,079 34,079 - 34,079

Hib (TR TEA
Convertible bonds R ES 5.43% 520,705 - 600,000 600,000
554,784 34,079 600,000 634,079

2012 20124
Non-derivative financial FITELRAR

liabilities

Trade and other payables ENBRZE N/A 219,621 219,621 = 219,621

Hib TR i@
Convertible bonds AR ES 5.43% 493,413 - 600,000 600,000
713,034 219,621 600,000 819,621

Fair value ARE
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are EMEERERMEBEZARET
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing BEAREERANEIRBEESR
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. ENMETE °
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRAREERRE  HEHENAT
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded RAEVERERIEZEHEER
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements SRBEZRABEHEER A EME
approximate their fair values due to their immediate or H AR ERNERRE R

short-term maturities. EIH] -
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TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8.

INCOME

Turnover represents amount received and receivable from

sales of pharmaceutical and food products and natural

uranium, net of returns, discounts allowed and sales related

taxes, and gross rental income during the year. Revenues

recognised during the year are as follows:

ERBARHMEERA

LEBREFANKRES 25T
- HEEEHERRKRAHEEER
KR GmIARR A2 B W R EW
B ARES WAL - RA
FEER W T

2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Turnover =30
Sales of goods HEEM 789,014 1225329
Gross rental income (note a) e ARz (Hira) 7,580 6,958
796,594 1,232,287
Other operating income Heb&& WA
Bank interest income RITHBUA 12,671 24,594
Loan interest income from a shareholder ~ —%&R%EE 2 EF A 7,854 5,479
Interest income from overdue trade 10 HA R U BR T 2 FL B
receivable 158 -
Net exchange gain HIE H R - 174
Net gain on disposal of property, LEME  BMERREZ
plant and equipment Weas 558 = 19,289
Recovery of indemnified taxation (note b)  YgEEERE (MizIb) - 2,960
Others Hith 47 1,759
20,730 54,255
Total revenues El 6 817324 1,286,542
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8. TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 8. EXBENRHEMKEEWA
INCOME (continued) (%)
Notes: MEE -
(a) An analysis of the Group’s net rental income is as follows: (a) AEBZHSWAFEIN
N
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHBIT
Gross rental income AW AEEE 7,580 6,958
Less: Outgoings (included in cost of sales) & : #BRIF S (G ASESHKA) (1,354) (1,220)
Net rental income AW AFEE 6,226 5,738
(b) For the year ended 31 December 2012, tax liabilities (b) HZ2012%F 128318 ILEE -
incurred before 2002 were recovered from the then 2002 ERIE LTS B BB
controlling shareholders of the Company pursuant to the B HIA200241 A308 HE
deeq of indemnity dated 30 January 2002. Details are set BRERE  EEAXTEH
out in note 32(b). VIR AR B E o RIS EBAHT
+32(b) °
hvd | =B IN
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. oHER
Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer, being AEEBRERDERD#HBER
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes AfEENRMEREERRENE
of resource allocation and assessment of segment FATERESNERETRAR
performance focuses on types of goods or services MRt B m kiR ELE -
delivered or provided. No operating segments identified by TREBEBRREINNEED
the chief operating decision maker have been aggregated I RE S AR AR E A &
in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group. DB °
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating BERmME  AEENAIHRE KL
segments are as follows: BT
(@) pharmaceutical and food segment engages in a) EnMRmOMEHE -
the selling, distributing and manufacturing of DI REGE S R

pharmaceutical and food products;

(b)  property investment segment engages in leasing, b) MERESHERE %
developing and selling of office premises and EREERIAEREED
residential properties; and xRk

(c)  natural uranium trading segment engages in trading c) ARAWMEZDEMERRH

. CRIF & R
of natural uranium resources. BIRE ST o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. 2HEHE )

Segment revenues and results DE R R EE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and TREJAEEITMEREED
results by reportable and operating segments: o WmREEDT

For the year ended 31 December 2013 B Z2013F12A31BLEE

Natural

Pharmaceutical Property uranium
and food investment trading Total

ERRRm NERE RRAHES st
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$°000
TR FRT TR TR

Turnover E - 45,706 7,580 743,308 796,594
Segment (loss) profit SE8 () %A (58,262) (10,390) 136,767 68,115
Other income and gains H e A R Uk 20,730
Gain on disposal of HEHE AR

subsidiaries pal & 6
Central administration costs A 1T I 2 (28,531)
Finance costs BERA (27,292)
Profit before taxation S TNyl 33,028
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2012F12A318ILFE

Natural
Pharmaceutical Property uranium
and food  investment trading Total

EpkRm  MERRE ARBES st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAL

Turnover e 57,836 6,958 1,167,493 1,232,287
Segment (loss) profit DES (E18) HF (82,153) 9,111 153,411 80,369
Other income and gains H e A RIS 52,496
Central administration costs — F R/THIAK R (36,422)
Finance costs BE KA (25,930)

Profit before taxation B B A 70,513
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9.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned
by (loss from) each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, other income and
gains and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments:

Segment assets

DEEE (&)
PEURER R ()

RRE DA BT BUR RS B3
KK 32 G R AR - 2 &8
A (B8 ¥5 7% 2 7B A BRE O 7
(EEBR) XRDEHRITE
RRAS - BB - E AR
s MBEKA o iy BB R
EERBAFEAEFATEREZ

HE -

THEERER

TREJANEERAIRE KRGS
DEAMZBERERE -

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
FERx TR

Pharmaceutical and food GmkBEm 91,972 93,078
Property investment VIR E 77,354 87,833
Natural uranium trading KAHE 5 199,276 240,596

368,602 421,507
Unallocated corporate assets RO ARIEE 1,283,793 1,390,963
Total assets BELE 1,652,395 1,812,470
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. ZEER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PREEREE (&)
Segment liabilities SEVE &

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT  FAL

Pharmaceutical and food FERRRM 20,810 17,652

Property investment MERE 1,121 1,216

Natural uranium trading KAHE 5 12,559 198,969

34490 217,837

Unallocated corporate liabilities RO RFIAE 539,329 537,346

Total liabilities BEME 573,819 755,183

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and RERSHEERDEEZER

allocating resources between segments: SlEmE :

. all assets are allocated to operating segments J BREK—-—EZRRMNER
other than loan receivable from a shareholder, bank RITHEGERIRE - UKE
balances and cash and other assets for corporate NERABEZHEMBEE B
use including property, plant and equipment and BEWE - BEREZEUR
other receivables. Hih W FKIESN - FREE

ENDEELEDE -

. all liabilities are allocated to operating segments J MRIENFTST - IRERIE
other than income tax payable, deferred tax BE TRREFUARE
liabilities, convertible bonds and certain other TFHEAMENKRIEBEIN - FIE

payables. BEHDEELEEDEL -
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. 2WER @)
Other segment information HippEHER
2013 20134

Natural

Pharmaceutical Property uranium
andfood investment trading Unallocated Total

BpRkREm  NRRE  RREES vl )
HK§'000 ~ HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
TER TER TER TER TER

Amounts included in the HERE e

measure of segment profit PUNEER

or loss or segment assets: EEARE
Addition to property, plant RENE  BRREE

and equipment 652 - - 175 827
Depreciation and amortisation NE R EH 4,592 281 15 430 5,318
Changes in fair value of RENMENLERS

investment properties - 12,646 - - 12,646
Net loss on disposal of property, — HENE - BER

plant and equipment REzERTRE 185 - - 8 193
Impairment of property, plant 0¥ BER

and equipment RAERE 942 - - - 942
Write-down of inventories WREE 3,214 = - - 3,214
Research and development costs  #F&£ 2 330 - - - 330
Operating lease rental on land THRET RS

and buildings HEHS 959 - 533 5,966 7458

Amounts regularly providedto  EHBEEHTERM
the Chief Executive Officer ERNBEFEERD
but not included in the measure i8R 2 PEE

of segment profit or loss or BZHE:

segment assets:
Interest expense FSRE% - - - 27292 27292
Income tax expense FBH T - - - 16,978 16,978
Bank interest income RTFEMA - - - (12,671) (12,671)
Loan interest income from a —ZREMEFFE

shareholder WA - - - (7,854) (7,854)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. oHWMEHR #)
Other segment information (Continued) Hitt o &R (&
2012 20124

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets:

Addition to property, plant

SEABRE
PHEER
BEARE

REWE - BERRE

Pharmaceutical
and food

EmRRm
HK$000
TAL

Property
investment
ESIE
HK$'000
TR

Natural
uranium
trading
HK$'000
TR

Total
Bzt
HK$'000
TART

Unallocated
AHE
HK$'000
TR

and equipment 2,796 27 241 1,479 4,543
Depreciation and amortisation HE R # 6,328 250 12 207 6,797
Changes in fair value of RENMENLEES

investment properties - (5,853) - - (5,853)
Net gain on disposal of property, ~ HEWE - BER

plant and equipment FE e (18) - - (19,271) (19,289)
Write-down of inventories WREE 3,494 = = = 3,494
Reversal of write-down of inventories #EIHURTFE (1,154) - - - (1,154)
Research and development costs  fFEER A& 1,211 - - - 1,211
Operating lease rental on land THREFEE

and buildings HERSE 681 - 522 3,693 4,896
Amounts regularly providedto  EHEERHITERA

the Chief Executive Officer ERBALREERS

but not included in the measure ~ HiBHHH WEE

of segment profit or loss BZHE:

or segment assets:

Interest expense FlBHY - - - 25,930 25,930
Income tax expense it - - - 51,866 51,866
Bank interest income RITMBHA - - - (24,594)  (24,59)
Loan interest income from —BREREFFIE

a shareholder WA = = = (5,479) (5,479)
Recovery of indemnified taxation Y [EiR(EFE - - - (2,960) (2,960)
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (“HK”)
and the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the location of the
operations. Information about the Group’s non-current
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.

DEEFR (@)
#4503
AEMMNLEBOREBRTE -

BERAASERBIBEL KA
MEMERBELEMAEMIEZ
e BREAKERRDEENE
HRRIBEEMENMEZS -

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REIIEBEFHUA FRBEE
2012 2013 2012
20134 20124 20135 20124
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FExT FiIT FExT T
HK BB 743,308 1,167,493 1,713 2,172
PRC ey 53,286 64,794 136,654 151,253
796,594 1232287 138,367 153,425

Information about major customers

Revenue from customer of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as
follows:

FRIEFEFZER

AT #5RBRERFEEARGER
SEHERABBBI0RNE,Z
WA

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000

Customer A’ =S H

FET TR

743,308 1,167,493

1 Revenue from natural uranium trading segment

L KERAHE S0 EB 2N
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10. FINANCE COSTS 10. BB A

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000
R TAT

Interest expenses on: THFIE 2 MEME
— imputed interest charged on — AIRRES 2 HEFE
convertible bonds (note 28) FY (H5E28) 27,292 25,930
11.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. 8B

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Hong Kong Profits Tax EBNED
- current year — RFEE 20,282 22,572
— (over) underprovision in prior years —BEFE (BEEE)
BT R (168) 26,357
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR TS H
— current year —KFEE 22 185
— underprovision in prior year —BEFERETE - 878
20,136 49,992
Deferred tax (note 29) EIERITE (M7E29) (3,158) 1,874
16,978 51,866
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BENE IR Z M EFE 8 G

estimated assessable profit for both years. FERBEFILA16.5% TR HE -
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11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

In prior years, Hong Kong Profits Tax amounting to
approximately HK$34,041,000 of a subsidiary of the
Company in respect of the years of assessment 2000/01
to 2005/06 were under inquiries by the IRD. The Group
lodged objections against the assessments and the IRD
had held over the payment of the profits tax and the total
amount of approximately HK$15,791,000 tax reserve
certificates were purchased and recorded as income tax
recoverable in the statement of financial position.

In the second half year of 2012, the Group reached a
settlement agreement with the IRD on the amounts of
Hong Kong Profits Tax relating to the years of assessment
2000/01 to 2011/12 for a total sum of approximately
HK$26,357,000 together with interest and penalty
of approximately HK$6,376,000. The tax liability of
approximately HK$26,357,000 and interest and penalty of
approximately HK$6,376,000 were recognised as income
tax expense and administrative expense for the year ended
31 December 2012, respectively. Pursuant to the deed of
indemnity dated 30 January 2002, sum incurred before
2002 of approximately HK$2,960,000 were indemnified and
settled by the then controlling shareholders. The remaining
amounts borne by the Group in total of approximately
HK$29,773,000 was settled by tax reserve certificates
in sum of approximately HK$15,791,000 and cash of
approximately HK$13,982,000 during the year ended
31 December 2012.

11.

EeHsxZH @)

RBAFE  BHRERAAQF—
& B /B 2 A1 #22000/01Z2005/06
RAMEE 2 BBFEH - PR
K #934,041,0008 7T - NEBEE
HZEFRREIRYE  EHRY
BHMNER : ARFEEER
X8 4915,791,0008 T 2 i 5
W ER 8k BERE I SRR 2 AT IR
BIFT15 5L o

R2012F T F » AEBEETB
F2000/01E2011/12R TR EE 2
& B T 15 T 42 % 4926,357,0007%
7T & [A #1 B & &l 5% 496,376,000
BITEKTNERE HBEBEL
26,357,0007% 738 [ F) & K& &1 5%
#76,376,000/% JT 7 # £20124F
12A3A L FEBABEEM
F 2 RITHF X o RI5H2002F
1A30RGI Y v REREBERE
20024 Fil & 4 #) 492,960,000
BILTESERMNZEREEREER
mHE XM B Z=2012612831
HIEFE  BARSERENSRE
A # #929,773,000% T F 0 4
15,791,000/ 7T A TR 5 B 2
#913,982,0008 LA & X 1 o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Besides, in the year ended 31 December 2012 and
prior years, the Hong Kong Profits Tax amounting to
approximately HK$26,849,000 of another subsidiary of the
Company in respect of the years of assessment 2002/03
to 2005/06 were under inquiries by the IRD. The Group
lodged an objection against the assessments and the IRD
had held over the payment of the profits tax and the total
amount of approximately HK$300,000 tax reserve certificate
was purchased and recorded as income tax recoverable
in the statement of financial position. During the year
ended 31 December 2012, the tax reserve certificate was
refunded as the IRD agreed that the income derived by this
subsidiary was non-Hong Kong sourced.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Certain PRC subsidiaries were either in loss-making
position for the current and the previous years or had
sufficient tax losses brought forward from previous years
to offset the estimated assessable income for the year and
accordingly did not have any provision for PRC Enterprise
Income Tax for the current and previous years.

The subsidiary operating in Macau is exempted from the
income tax in Macau for the current and previous years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI for the current and previous years.

11.

EeHsxZH @)

it 4 0 & 20128128318 IE
FERBAFE BMBEWREAA
7] 5 — @ M B A 5 7R2002/03%
2005/06=R T [E 2 B AT G -
N B F#926,849,0005 I © A
EEEHZBNBRELIRYE &
MBEEMMFE  ARaE
B B 42 %8 49300,000/ T 2 R
H W AFREVBRIARZ
A EIFR1EH - B E20126F12H
IBIEFE AR RBRERE
ZMEB AR HBALIFEETER
B - AL ESERE

BIEPBRDSEMEEHE (D
BRED REEBGH - BIW
BRARINMEFE 2R EH25% °

RAEEREEFE  ETHE
MBARENERRN  HaE
BAEFE 2 RIGER R IAKH
FAMBRERTEA - B R A
FEMBEFEYEEMFED
EFETAERE -

RAFERBEFE - ERAK
B2 HIB R R ERRIBPIREH

BERESHERABELZES
([BVI)) 2 2B R*E#H A& E
RAFERBEFEDELNFA
SRS KLBVIFTEH °
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FEBixXH (@)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to AFEEMEMETEHEGEERE
the profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of FIRBR RS FI SRR T -

profit or loss as follows:

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Profit before taxation B 55 A% ) 33,028 70,513
Tax calculated at rates applicable to REBHE A AERBE AR

profits in the respective tax M 7 R E 2 1B

jurisdiction concerned 3,242 11,005
Effect of tax exemption granted —RRPINEB A R ERRTIE

to a Macau subsidiary & 76 546
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIRA Z BiE 2

for tax purpose (2,109) (7,683)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT H e B &

for tax purpose 12,734 14,298
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible KRR IEE B K A FR E ks

temporary difference not recognised ER BB E 3,203 6,465
(Over) underprovision in prior years BEFE (BREEE) BETR (168) 27,235
Income tax expense for the year REEZFIEH I H 16,978 51,866

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 29. FEIER B B E A HIFE29 o
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PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):
Amortisation of intangible assets

e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE
12. AFEER

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT TAET

RER NS kR
(FFA) THIZIA -

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments B b TR N E IR

on land use rights
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense and
included in cost of sales
Carrying amount of inventories sold
Write-down of inventories
Reversal of write-down of inventories
(note 22)

BiHmmEE 61 60
402 397
ZERRD N & 1,124 1,421
RERAT MET AEER A
EEGFEMNRAE 639,014 1,027,497
WREFEE 3,214 3,494
BOMoRFE (FizF22)
= (1,154)

642,228 1,029,837

Depreciation of property,

W% - BERREITE

plant and equipment 4,855 6,340
Operating lease rental on T REBFREHERS

land and buildings 7,458 4,896
Research and development costs TSR AR 330 1,211
Staff costs (including directors’ BINA (BIEESHE)

emoluments) (note 15) (Ff7%15) 51,574 51,606
Net exchange loss (gain) VRIE H B (IES) 151 (174)
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BERZHEZ

plant and equipment B8 (W) JF5E 193 (19,289)
DIVIDENDS 13. RE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended HZE2013F12A31H IEFEN &
31 December 2013, nor has any dividend been proposed TR EBRERE  MARS
since the end of the reporting period (2012: nil). HifAE B ARIMEZZ KRB

A% 2 (20124 : #&) o
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

14. BRER

ZNNEIE? Y DN A ER=T L E- TS
SBEMTIR T IIBERE

2013 2012
2013%F 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Profit A
Profit for the year attributable to STEHEREANEERET
the owners of the Company for the . /NETE YEUN

purposes of basic and diluted FEMARE R 5
earnings per share 16,365 18,660
Number of shares RGEHE

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of basic
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares in respect of share options

HESREARFZ
HBIRAETF

BRAMEE . BB

3,332,586,993 3,332,586,993

4

W\
T

= 37,842

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share

SHEEREERN
BRI 8

3,332,586,993 3,332,624,835

For the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
conversion of convertible bonds as their exercise would
result in an increase in earnings per share.

15. STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

Salaries, allowances, other

HZE2013F 2012124318 1E
FE TESREERFELSZ
ERERTBRESFEER FAA
A MRESBERERAET
EF-e

ﬁ.if&ﬁ@ﬁ%%%

2012
20124F
HK$'000
FABT

2013
20135

HK$°000
TR

e o REL - HARER RIEA

benefits and bonus 50,137 49,514
Retirement benefit schemes contribution  3E/RTE ISR 2R 1,437 2,092
51,574 51,606
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STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes which are available to qualified employees. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the subsidiaries in independently administered funds.
Monthly contributions made by the subsidiaries are
calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable
payroll costs or fixed sums as stipulated under the relevant
requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in
the PRC, the subsidiaries of the Company in this country
participate in respective government retirement benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are
required to contribute to the Schemes to fund the retirement
benefits of the eligible employees. Contributions made to
the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the
PRC are responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent
gross contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated
by the relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined
contribution schemes operated in Hong Kong.

The total cost charged to profit or loss of HK$1,437,000
(2012: HK$2,092,000) represents contributions payable
to these schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the
employees of the Group are set out in note 30.

15.

ETRAX(BREESEMH
€)#®)

FENMERARIREEREERE
TTEBMHKEE - ZEFFHEZE
EEMBRARAZEENBIERE
EEATHATAE - WBRAZE
AR TR IR B B AR TE PR AR A
AR ZETED LKE
EFRE (BERBRME) 55 -

REFEERBERZHAL - AR
Az BB LR 2 EE BB
BARBMEE (TZFTED - &
b ZEMBRARAERZETE
EHHR UBRNAERERZ
BIREH - MZFTEIEH 2 H
BRIy iR B8 B A5 ) P AT BB R #r
MRAZBEBDLLEE - HE
BEHRERABERERKEEXME
N2 2BURKER - K ELZ
EHEZEEERBREZSTE
SEEL BN -

BORAE A ET 8 R A LR B [\ i
TEHEREREFEZZFEMN
RREBERBEMEZEBHKEBIE
2 AR ER -

BB Bk Z 485K 751,437,000
7t (20124 : 2,092,000/ ) * B

AEBERA S HERZ ST EIE
(NPPA T/

ARAAAEEE TR L BRE
ZFHIBEMNMIEES0 ©
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16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
twelve (2012: twelve) directors and the chief
executive were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2013

16.

§$&%%¥mxizm

(a) EBEBERTETHAEME
Bt EN+ =% (2012
F:+ZR)EERETE
THRABZMESMT -

BZ2013F12A31HLFE

Other emoluments
Hit &
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus contribution Total
A 1.1 BAET
e REMEF B ST gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
Executive directors: HTEZ
Yu Zhiping' REF - 75 - - 75
Li Xianli® E3hvE - 1,185 160 - 1,345
He Zuyuan® A - 1,274 188 - 1,462
Non-executive dlirectors: HHTEE
Yu Zhiping' REF 185 - - - 185
Wei Qiyan? BHZ? 139 - - - 139
Jin Yunfei HER 139 - - - 139
Huang Jianming =2EH 150 - - - 150
Chen Qiming® B A 1 - - - 1
Xing Jianhua® FRE 11 - - - 11
Zhou Zhenxing*® R o 15 - - - 15
Independent non-executive BB TEE -
directors:
Ling Bing AR 120 - - - 120
Qiu Xianhong BBk 120 - - - 120
Huang Jinsong ETA 120 - - - 120
1,010 2,534 348 - 3,892
! Mr. Yu Zhiping was also the Chief Executive Officer ! REFLEENRBAR
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed AMERAMITE L
above included those for services rendered S P 15 B 15 A Y A
by him as the Chief Executive Officer. He was LERBHBEITER
redesignated from the Chairman of the board of BEHTENORBED
directors and a non-executive director to the Chief M& - %K20135F12
Executive Officer and an executive director on HoRMEESEFHR
5 December 2013. FHNITEZHTER
WITERPITES ©
2 Resigned on 5 December 2013. 2 H2013F 12 A5BBHE -
g Redesignated from the Chief Executive Officer to 8 R2013F12A5HME
an executive vice president of the Company on FEHITERAEARA
5 December 2013. EIEEIEE -
4 Mr. Zhou Zhenxing, was appointed as the 4 JB ¥l B 5% 4 720134
Chairman of the board of directors on 5 December 12A5HEZRRES
2013. EES
5 Appointed on 5 December 2013. 5 R2013F12A5HEZ

£
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. EERRESHMA L 2
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) & ®)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) ESRTIETHAEME
(Continued) (4
For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE2012F 128318 IEFE
Other emoluments
Hitnfie
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes
Fees benefits bonus  contribution Total
e o A RIRET
e REMEN  BETL  SEER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT TAT THEL TET
Executive directors: HITEE
He Zuyuan' fal AT - 1,414 380 12 1,806
Li Xianl® &3V - 612 173 7 792
Li Zhengguang’ FIEx - 400 - - 400
Zheng Xiaowei2* i - 38 = = 38
Non-executive directors: HHTEE -
Yu Zhiping FET 200 - - - 200
Wei Qiyan BEE 150 = = = 150
Jin Yunfe?® HERS 75 - - - 75
Huang Jianming? ZERe 75 _ _ . 75
Chen Zhiyu* BEF 75 198 = = 273
Zheng Xiaowei? B 37 - = = 37
Independent non-executive  BUHHITEE
directors:
Ling Bing EE 120 - - - 120
Qiu Xianhong s 120 - - - 120
Huang Jinsong RN 120 - - - 120
972 2,662 553 19 4,206
L Mr. He Zuyuan was also the Chief Executive Officer 1 A fE TR £ IR B AR A
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed FNEFEHRTE - b
above included those for services rendered by him SC R 1% B 1 7 A A0 B
as the Chief Executive Officer. SEBRERBRTER
BEHITENBRBDH
2 Redesignated from non-executive director to 2 R20129F3 A 158 BRI
executive director on 15 March 2012. MITESZATHTE
=
3 Appointed on 5 July 2012. E M2012%7A50 & &
f£o
4 Resigned on 5 July 2012. 4 2012467 A58 BHE o
Discretionary bonus for both years were determined S REEE Y BISIEL )
with reference to the Group’s operating results, PN A R
individual performance and comparable market 4% AA KRB RAA

statistics. MIZHIEMT °
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. EERERSEHMA L 2 BN
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) € (®)
(b)  Individuals with highest emoluments (b) BEFMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two, including Mr. He Zuyuan for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and Mr. Li Xianli for
the period from 1 January 2013 to 4 December 2013
(2012: one) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
16(a) above. The emoluments of Mr. Li Xianli for the
period from 5 December 2013 to 31 December 2013
and the remaining three (2012: four) individuals
were as follows:

RAEEBREZESHMA
T WE - BEMET
S RN E E20135F 12 A31
AEFERFRIEER
20131 A1H £20135F 12
H4H (2012F : — %) B
ARRIESR EMEeEE
ot Bt FE16(a) R 1 B
§ o IR ER2013F
12A5H Z2013F12 31
HNH# =% (20124
ma) EARBMST -

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits 4% - 284 &K H & F 4,120 4,736
Discretionary bonus BEIEAL 467 450
Retirement benefit schemes contribution iR k4@ F|5H2 2% - 9
4,587 5,195
The emoluments were within the following bands: HMESELTESEERN :

2013 2012
20135 20124
Number of Number of

Individuals individuals

N
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 LE
(note (i)) 1,500,000/ 7T (FI&E(I)) 3 4
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 702
2,000,0007 7T 1 -
(i) Mr. Li Xianli resigned as an executive (i) ZIR 7 E 2013

director on 5 December 2013. His total
emoluments as the capacity of director and
staff of the Company was within the band of
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000.

128508 & T
TEE HEMT
KRB EEREB
THWeBEE
1,000,001/ 7T =
1,500,000/ 7T K &6
B o
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DIRECTORS’ AND INDIVIDUALS WITH 16. ESENRKSFHFMA L M

HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS (Continued) € @)

(¢) No emoluments have been paid by the Group to () R E E2013%F N2012612
all directors of the Company or the five highest A31BELEFE  ANEBEL
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon BRARAREMESHAS
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of EayMATZAME - 1F
office during the years ended 31 December 2013 ARSI IIA KA IMAREE
and 2012. No directors of the Company waived or W2 SRS E AR E o
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years & 220134 &20124F12
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. A31BLEFE  #iEARQ

AIEFE R EREEM

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREEE

Technical
know-how

ERR MR
HK$'000
TAET

COST 2%
At 1 January 2012 201251 H1H 2,900
Exchange realignment & 5 32
At 31 December 2012 R2012412H31H 2,932
Exchange realignment B 7, 2 92
At 31 December 2013 7A2013F12831H 3,024
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT R+ 84 B E
At 1 January 2012 M20126F1 A1H 2,578
Exchange realignment P& 5 FEE 28
Provided for the year REERHE 60
At 31 December 2012 MR2012%12H31H 2,666
Exchange realignment M 85
Provided for the year AN E R 61
At 31 December 2013 A2013F12831H 2,812
CARRYING VALUES ARMEIE
At 31 December 2013 A2013F12831H 212
At 31 December 2012 2012912 H31H 266
Technical know-how has finite useful lives and are BEERMAOBZEBERAFERSF

amortised on a straight-line basis over five years. B IR EREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% - WERKRE

Land and
buildings

THEES
HK$'000
AT

Leasehold
improve-
ments
HENF
%
HK$'000
TAT

Plant and
machinery

B R
HK$000
BT

Motor
vehicles

A
HK$'000
AT

Furniture,
fixtures and
office
equipment

B kB

B#ARE

HK$000
BT

Total

HK$:000
AL

cosT KA
At 1 January 2012 2012461418 61,055 5,008 80,388 11,934 9,388 167,773
Exchange realignment [ R 700 62 907 133 101 1,903
Additions NE - 196 353 2,265 1,729 4,543
Disposals L& (13,989) - - (2,326) (2512) (18,827)
At 31 December 2012 m2012612A31R 47,766 5,266 81,648 12,006 8,706 155,392
Exchange realignment 5 1,494 165 2,548 351 265 4,823
Additions e - - 616 - 211 827
Disposals e (125) - (595) (1,706) (514) (2,940)
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12A318 49,135 5,431 84,217 10,651 8,668 158,102
ACCUMULATED FHRERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2012 201241 A1H 32,481 2,985 50,829 10,628 7,843 104,766
Exchange realignment fE 5 A 362 15 701 113 34 1,225
Provided for the year TEERME 1768 788 2,143 871 770 6,340
Eliminated on disposals HERLH (2,302) - - (2,142) (2,373) (6,817)
At 31 December 2012 R2012612/31A 32,309 3788 53673 9,470 6,274 105,514
Exchange realignment L 1,025 129 1,928 285 205 3572
Provided for the year TEERE 648 697 1,996 747 767 4,855
Impairment losses ERRAEER
recognised (note) (BzE) 240 = 611 = 91 942
Eliminated on disposals HERL (25) - (521) (1,536) (277) (2,359)
At 31 December 2013 12013F12A318 34,197 4,614 57687 8,966 7,060 112,524
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2013 12013%12531H 14,938 817 26,530 1,685 1,608 45,578
At 31 December 2012 R20124123318 15,457 1478 27,975 2,536 2432 49,878




1569

Annual Report 2013
—2-=FFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. ¥  MERRE &)
(Continued)
The carrying values of properties shown above comprise: Lt REERE

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Land outside Hong Kong: REBIRINZ T -

Medium-term lease RHEAFRE 14,882 15,457
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt - BEREREEE IR
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful BEEFEUTAFERAFHERE
lives and rates per annum: KETEIE
Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the term of MELH & RHEF sk

buildings the lease or 40 years BF 40 - ARG A

RE
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the term of MEMERE KRESFHHF
the lease or 5 years PSR & A%
Plant and machinery 2.5% t0 20% BB Mies 2.5%%20%
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 10% to 27% Bk RKEBR  10%227%

office equipment N

Note: Mz -
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of the R B E2013F12A31B L FE © &
Company conducted a review of the Group’s manufacturing assets ARAEFEMNIEB  REEE R
and determined that a number of those assets were impaired. BZEEEYAZEDRME - Bt
Accordingly, impairment losses of approximately HK$240,000 ERARERRREMmSDE 2 T kg
(2012: nil), HK$611,000 (2012: nil) and HK$91,000 (2012: nil) were FBEMEEURRM KB R
recognised in respect of land and buildings, plant and machinery NERAE D B SRR B B 18 49240,000
and furniture, fixtures and office equipment respectively which 7 JT (20124 :© #&) ~ 611,000/ T
were used in the pharmaceutical and food segment. The directors (20124 : #&) X91,0007% st (2012
of the Company assessed the recoverable amounts of the relevant F|E) ARAEEENEFREEZ
assets based on their fair values less costs of disposal which are ARBEREEERN (2REHEEE
determined by reference to the market prices for similar assets. WG EEE) ATmZEEEZA

WEIE R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HK$'000
TAT

19. REYH*E

FAIR VALUE DRE

At 1 January 2012 R2012F1A1H 76,790
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss ERERERZ A EIEM 5,853
Exchange realignment FEE 5 3K 887
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H 83,530
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss ERIBRERZARERD (12,646)
Exchange realignment M 4, 8 B 2,428
At 31 December 2013 M2013F12831H 73,312

Notes:

(a)

The carrying value of investment properties shown above
are situated in the PRC and held under medium-term
lease.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes
are measured using the fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31 December 2013 and 2012 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Avista Valuation
Advisory Limited (“Avista”), independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group, who
had among its staff members of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. The valuation was
arrived at on an open market basis assuming sale with
existing tenancies by using the income approach by
capitalising the net rental income receivable from the
existing tenancies and the reversionary rental income
potentials.

There has been no change from the valuation technique
used in the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is
their current use.

BAE

EiREEZRENETIUR
PR REBERHEERS -

REBEMERBEEEHEERE
VASRERAE € sk E & A2 (B A ik
ZWERERH AR R EERG
B UNBERARIHEREYD
o,

KEEREMER2013F &k
20125128318 2 A A E TS
ERmEAEEEREE B
AERBEAEML ERSTG
BAARQR ([XEMH]) AT
HEITHEMER - XEBEDS
BIAREBHNEMESEE -
BEA T AT IS E Y EFTE R B
MEERZHELR - %iHE
RIEARTEREE  REER
EHETHE  ZBREAER
BERAHENHESRAFER
WO BEEFRS WA MER -

HERMR L —FEMAEL
BNE - BT EMEZARE
MmE  VEZEERERER
HRK 2 FERE-
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19. REWXE &)

Notes: (Continued) Mizk : (4%)
(e) Details of the Group’s investment properties and (e) MR2013F12H318 + A& E

BAWE T HEREWNAAE
S AR

information about the fair value hierarchy as at
31 December 2013 are as follows:

Fair value
HK$’000
(Level 3)

[RE
FTET
(B=4&)

All investment properties Fra&ms 73,312

FRALELABFERGE RN
ERER -

There were no transfers between levels in fair value
hierarchy during the year.

EMRANEE = RALEHE
2B

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of
investment properties:

Valuation Significant
unobservable inputs

TABERZEEZER

technique

TR BRI

Key input
FEHAE

All Investment Income approach  Income approach takes into the account of ~ Term yield and reversion

properties net rental income of the properties derived yield ranging from 9%
from the existing leases and/or achievable to 15% and 8% to 15%
in the existing market with due allowance respectively.
for the reversionary income potential of the
leases, which have been then capitalised
to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.

FIRIREME WASE WAETEFARBEDENREHEMSE BHEKREERESKS

R /SR T 5 LAl R 2 & WA F
# BERARBEEZERBRAENEEE
e BRAEMEEE TAEREARE—E
EEMCLREENE °

K5 BN TF9%ZE15% K&
8%Z%E15% ©

RRABAZEBEZRENERAR

The fair value measurement of the investment properties

determined by using income approach is negatively
correlated to the term yield and reversion yield. A slight
increase in term yield and reversion yield used would result
in a significant decrease in fair value measurement of the
properties, vice versa.

The net decrease in fair value of approximately
HK$12,646,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Bt 75 B AR W R R 1B R I
SmRZEEM - PRKERRE
BRAEXRBEHEREEFYWER
REFEBRERD  RZIFA -

HZE2013F12A31BIEEE » A
£ BB A F 58 912,646,000/ JT
T B S FERR o
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20. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND 20. tHFAEENHEERE
USE RIGHTS
2013 2012
201345 20124
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MEAmE DR
Current assets REEE 409 397
Non-current assets EMENEE 19,265 19,751
19,674 20,148

The prepaid lease payments consist of cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC held under
medium-term lease.

21. GOODWILL

21.

BNMEFABRETHEER
BAIRHREZ 2 + b {E i
DN

ik

Hengtai
Group

ERKE
HK$'000
TAT

COST &S
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 and 2013 #201241 A1 H }&2012F &

2013%F12H31H 112,406
IMPAIRMENT A
At 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 and 2013 2012415 1H K% 20124F

20134128318 112,406
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2013 A2013F12831H =
At 31 December 2012 2012412 A431H -

The amount represents goodwill in relation to the
acquisition of the entire interest in PO)||[{EZ=E EAR A7
(“Sichuan Hengtai”) and its subsidiary in 2008.

Upon confirmation of expiry of the food hygiene license
of Osteoform Food Product during the second half year of
2011, goodwill was further impaired to nil with reference to
a valuation report issued by Avista.

Z e AR 2008F WHEM)I1EZR
BEARAR ([HIMESE]) K
MEAR A EEEE < BE -

HRENTBRBZRME LA
BR2011FETFFRHR - WK
SENFEBAEHZHERS
BEDE—DRERZT -
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INVENTORIES 22, 78
2013 2012
20135 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Raw materials R 1,148 1,978
Work in progress RS 146 62
Finished goods Bk 19,656 9,151
Packing materials YR 640 357
21,590 11,548

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there was an
increase in net realisable value of finished goods due to
change of distribution channel and a decrease in cost
to sell. As a result, a reversal of write-down of finished
goods of approximately HK$1,154,000 (2013: nil) had been
recognised and included in cost of sales in last year.

LOAN RECEIVABLE FROM
A SHAREHOLDER

Loan to China Uranium Development

23.

ERTHE#ERR

#H Z=2012F12A318 L & & -
HRDHRERERBEERAT
B B @H A ERFEEME
Fo Bt E—FEBERBEEM
SRELRK fB %91,154,000/8 7T (2013
FE) RZFABEERARA o

B — B RRNVERK

2013
20135

2012
20124
HK$'000
FAT

HK$’000
FERT

248,082 775174

The Group advanced the revolving loans to China
Uranium Development in the sum of USD32,000,000
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: USD100,000,000). The
loans were unsecured, carried interest at one month
London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 6% per
annum (2012: one month LIBOR plus 6% per annum)
and repayable within 90 days (2012: 45 days) after the
advancement. On 26 February 2014, the loan was fully
settled.

N & B 72013F 128318 [A] F
BRI H —% & 232,000,000
%7t (20124F : 100,000,000357T) HY
BIREN - ZERRERR - &—
18 A mBERITRZER 2 ([LIBORY)
hneE (20124 : —{& ALIBORNG
EFLR) MESFE WEARER
HHI1290H (20124 : 45H) W&
iE ° M2014F2H26H * ZEME
BERHER -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

24,

P W Bl R e L £t W SRR R

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT TAET

Trade and bills receivables (note a) JEURBR R R FEUR = (Mf3ta) 207,575 255,303
Less: impairment loss recognised in B AR 2 B HERRE
respect of trade receivables B8 (Kiztb)
(note b) (4,344) (4,212)
203,231 251,091
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE - 5T& R EM

receivables (note c)

FEdE IR (MisEc)

10,225 15,520

213,456 266,611

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

Notes:

(b)

(c)

At 31 December 2013, included in trade and bills
receivables is amount of approximately HK$195,769,000
(2012: HK$239,746,000) due from an intermediate holding
company, CGNPC-URC, the sole shareholder of China
Uranium Development.

The movements in impairment loss of trade receivables
were as follows:

RS B 48 B % 4 R R A (AR
o e

GhE

(a) M2013% 128318 » 5 A JE
WHERRERZEASED
195,769,000/ 7T (20124 :
239,746,000/ JT) A fE W
MEZERAR P EZMERR
(hE RN —RE)
HIFRIH o

(b) ERREBEREBBESHIT

2013 2012

20134 20124

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET FHBxT

At 1 January ®1A1H 4,212 4,165
Exchange realignment B 3 52 132 47
At 31 December M12A31H 4,344 4,212

At 31 December 2013, included in the impairment loss
of trade receivables are individually impaired trade
receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately
HK$4,344,000 (2012: HK$4,212,000) which were due to
long outstanding.

At 31 December 2013, included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are interest receivable
of approximately HK$169,000 (2012: HK$5,479,000)
due from a shareholder, China Uranium Development, in
relation to the revolving loan of USD32,000,000 (2012:
USD100,000,000) (note 23).

R2013512A318 © EUREER
KR E B 18 B IEE BB E /R
JEURBR KA R A5 82 404,344,000
BT (2012FF © 421200008 7T) -
EHRERAREHAAREE -

(c) R2013F12A31H - % A F&
H3RIE ~ 7] R E fh R U RIS
A8 3E Bt — 1B A 132,000,000
2% 7T (20124 : 100,000,000
L) BYBERE ZX i FEUR — 4 AR B
Fp B #h 3£ 25 R A9 F1) 8,49 169,000
7 T (20124F : 5,479,000/
7r) (FizE23) »
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group’s credit period for pharmaceutical and food
segment ranged from 90 days to 180 days while credit
period for natural uranium trading segment ranging from 25
days to 88 days after delivery dates.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade and bills
receivables net of impairment loss recognised on trade
and bills receivables presented based on the invoice date,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition
dates, at the end of the reporting period:

24,

e Wi Bl R B EL At B WK R TR

(%

RN AEE  AEBERKRER
@O BHEE RN F0RK=180
K- MAARBE S5 BHEEH
AN T25 K =88k °

RBEMAEER - AR RE
REHMEENERAMREE
KRR EERR 2 EEER
AR EIERE ST -

2013 2012

201345 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEIT FAT

Within 30 days 30K 29,793 246,427
31-60 days 31E60K 171,344 3,291
61-90 days 61E90K 1,373 1,373
Over 90 days EBHEI0K 721 =
203,231 251,091

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance, carrying
amount of approximately HK$169,067,000 (2012: nil) which
is past due as at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over this balance. The ageing
of the balance is 31 to 60 days (2012: nil) at the end of the
reporting period. On 18 February 2014, the amount was
fully settled.

The Group’s trade and other receivables that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

AEBNEREREHBERR
“A{H5%7169,067,00078 7T (2012
FoE) MERRIE  ZRER
HwERKRD@E - BAEEL K
HBEBEELEE AEEY
ERZEABRFAEMERS -
RS B R 45 R MY BR B 231260
X (20124 : &) o }R2014%F2R
188 ' ZERCEZHEE -

AEBENEREEERNERER
SN2 B HIME 2 FE W ARk I
A IR T

USD’000

FEx
2013
20134

RMB’000
ARMT
2013
20134

Presented in:

BIR%

2012
20124

2012
20124

FEURBR TR R EAth
FEWERIA - 460 490 70

Trade and other receivables
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25.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2013, unpledged bank balances comprise
of short-term bank deposits with original maturity of three
months or less of approximately HK$999,334,000 (2012:
HK$530,457,000) and bank balance of approximately
HK$31,020,000 (2012: HK$73,981,000). Short-term bank
deposits carry fixed interest rates ranging from 0.01% to
1.40% (2012: ranging from 0.80% to 1.18%) per annum
and bank balances carry interest at average market rate of
0.33% (2012: 0.16%) per annum.

At 31 December 2012, pledged bank deposits represent
deposits pledged to banks to secure short-term banking
facilities granted to the Group in respect of bills and letter
of credit facilities and are therefore classified as current
assets. The deposits carry fixed interest rate at 0.01% per
annum. The pledged bank deposits were released upon
the settlement of bills and letter of credit facilities.

Bank balances and cash of the Group at 31 December
2013 include amounts of approximately HK$19,721,000
(2012: HK$31,540,000) denominated in RMB which is not
freely convertible to other currencies.

The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

Presented in:
SIRA :

Bank balances and cash RITEFNRS

25.

TRERRES

%2013&12)%315 R RRT

EEERERTEEZBHA=-HEANR
2 52 BRER 17 17 3K #999,334,0007%
7T (20124 : 530,457,000/87T) &
R 17451 #931,020,00058 7T (2012
4 73,981,000/ L) - 52 HA IR 1T
FRIZEEFHENFOOIER
1.40E (2012%F : 17 F0.80E =
118E) 51 B » MRTTHETFIRFY
M5 %0.33E (20124 : 0.16F)
stE

M2012412A31H » B & # R
THEEARTNEERERRER
M EREHRTREDER T
BIT2EFER Bt ARSE
F TR EE F A E0.01E 5
c BEMRITFERNENRIE
&Eﬁﬁﬁkéﬁﬂﬁﬁf o

7 £ B #2013F 128310 2 iR
THERBESBEUARE
Z FRIE#919,721,0005 JT (2012
4 1 31,540,000/ 70) © ZERE
T™MESEBHEBRAEMEY -

AEBENFREEERIERYR
Aoz E'EFIME 2 RITHETFRIR
BT

RMB’000
ARETR
2013
20135

2012
20124

351 427
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. ENRARHEMENSTIE

2013 2012
20134 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000
R TAT

Trade and bills payables BRI M RN 2 13,825 199,068
Accrued expenses and other payables JETF S M E b T FRIE 20,761 20,998

34,586 220,066

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills RmEHBEEER  BREEEH
payables presented based on the invoice date at the end B2 ENERRENEE 2
of the reporting period: BREROITIOT -

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Within 30 days 30K 13,552 198,704
31-60 days 31E60X 31 46
61-90 days 61290k 2 13
Over 90 days HEBHEI0K 240 305

13,825 199,068

The average credit period on purchases of goods was EEERz2THEEHARIK
30 days (2012: 30 days). The Group has financial risk (20124 : 30K) - AEEE EjE
management policies in place to ensure that all payables VB REREEREE - LARRE

are settled within the credit time frame. R RIEBRMEEENEE -
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26.

27.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

(Continued) 26.

(%

R ARENT

AEBENEREEER
SNz R HIME 2 AT BRI H

FE A R B2 EL At B A SR TR

WEEE

Presented in: UsSD’000 RMB’000
SIRE : SEESN AR¥®T T
2013 2012 2013 2012
201345 20124 20135 20124
Trade and other payables FEBR R R EAth
JERTFRIE 715 - 1,230 1,000
SHARE CAPITAL 27. B

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012
and 31 December 2013

Number
of shares

BRHEE

BREEC.OVETZ EiBAR

JETE
20121818 »
2012512 A31H &

Amount
Ex ]
HK$'000
T

2013%F12A31H 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 R2012F1 818 »
and 31 December 2013 2012F12H318 &
2013%F12H31H 3,332,586,993 33,326
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 18 August 2011, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (the “CB”) in principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 to China Uranium Development. The CB
are denominated in HK$. The CB entitled the holder to
convert the CB in full or in part (in an amount of HK$1,000
and integral multiples thereof) into the ordinary shares
of the Company at any time on or after the date of issue
of the CB up to seven days prior to the maturity date on
17 August 2016 at an initial conversion price of HK$0.23
per share, subject to adjustments. If the CB had not been
converted, it would be redeemed on 17 August 2016 at its
principal amount.

The CB contained two components, liability and equity
elements. The equity element was presented in equity
heading “equity component of convertible bonds”. The
fair value of the liability component are calculated as
the present value of the stream of future cash flows. The
effective interest rate of the liability component is 5.43%
per annum. The movement of the liability component of the
CB for the year is set out below:

28.

R ES

KA FEHA201148 A 18 H A9 B 8
F PR ITR 2 %8 2600,000,000
BT ERBRRES ([ATHRK
BEH]) o AIRRES B ITEME o
MRESHFBEERERETA
BmREHFABRScEEZTH
H (201658 A178H) A £ B 21
MG AT RRESBHL LD
(2% /31,0008 7T &k BT 2EE)
RYFEIREGR0.23B T (A] T
AR B AN ABEBRRG
MARREE AT AR ES - BN
2016F8 17 B LAE ARG EEEM -

HRKRESBRERSS ARk
PRAEE D o BRAFE D R [ 7] #2 %
BERALI I BT 2ERAANE
5l BB RAABERRKRRE S
MEZBREAE - AEHOZE
RN S FE5.43%  T&RE
JIFARBREFAERS <&
3)

HK$'000
THETT

At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 /18 467,483
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HERM SR (KFE10) 25,930
At 31 December 2012 R2012F12A31H 493,413
Imputed interest charged (note 10) HEN SR (KIFE10) 27,292
At 31 December 2013 7A2013F12831H 520,705
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION 29. EZEHIEF

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and
assets recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior year:

AT ARAERE R85 E R
2 EBREHBEEEREENR
BH%

Accumulated

tax depreciation

RerHEHE
HK$'000

A7

Change in
fair value
of land and
buildings
and
investment
properties
1iRET
NRRENE
MERD
HK$'000
T

Change in
fair value of
properties
upon transfer
to investment
properties
RENER 2
RAEED
HK$'000
THT

Tax losses

HAER
HK$000
A7

@t
HK$'000
THT

At 1 January 2012 R2012F1 A 1A 5,804 2,686 3,246 (161) 11,575
Charged to profit or loss RE&R 284 1429 = 161 1874
Exchange realignment e 61 25 36 = 122
At 31 December 2012 120126128318 6,149 4,140 3,282 - 13,571
Credited to profit or loss FAER = (3,158) = - (3,158)
Exchange realignment R AR 57 83 104 = 244
At 31 December 2013 R2013%E1258318 6,206 1,065 3,386 - 10,657

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$87,786,000 (2012:
HK$76,778,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of the tax losses of approximately HK$87,786,000 (2012:
HK$76,778,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of HK$87,786,000 (2012: HK$76,778,000) that will expire
after five years from the year of assessment to which they
relate to. Other losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
In connection with the tax inquiries by IRD as disclosed in
note 11, certain tax losses brought forward from prior years
had been forfeited in the course of settlement with IRD.

RBEHEEER  AE@ETH#
HEAKBRF 2 RBARIEE
1B # 5&87,786,000% T (2012
& :76,778,000% L) c M B &
B T8 ORI R 2R g W SRR - i
Bt #987,786,0007% 7T (20124 :
76,778,000 7T ) < FRIEE 1B R
EEMBEEE - RERBIEEE
f 4987,786,000/% T (20124
76,778,000/ 7T) KRB EAERE 2
A FEERFTAERER o HMhE
BRI R HA 4SS - B RE11FT
MAFIEER - BT RIS EOR
BEEERRRBEPHEVE
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DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$67,280,000 (2012: HK$62,026,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible differences
can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$2,707,000 (2012: HK$3,279,000) as the
Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted on 26 January 2002
(“2002 Share Option Scheme”). The 2002 Share Option
Scheme was replaced by a share option scheme adopted
by the shareholders on 23 July 2003 (“2003 Share Option
Scheme”).

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 2 June 2010, a new share option
scheme (“2010 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted
and the 2003 Share Option Scheme was terminated. Any
share options granted pursuant to the 2003 Share Option
Scheme prior to the termination will remain exercisable
before the expiration date. Details of which were set out in
the Company'’s circular dated 27 April 2010.

29.

30.

FEERIE ()

REREEER  AEEET
IR B B 2= 5B 4967,280,0007% T
(20124 : 62,026,000 JT) ° H
AR K A] B FE AR B i I AT K 88
BRI ERE WA ER AR
MR ZREERIECHIBAE

BRI EMEHE - 8200841
A1B « gt BB R R FTHRE
M E IR 2B AMZIENR
B PA AN 55 [ A 32 I B (Ol G B = 58
2B BEBREEETAA
BERA AT R AR BE[E - B A AR
EMEHRENPRMME AT R
i I PTEE A BRI &£ 582,707,000/%
7T (20124F : 3,279,000/ 7T) {E
HHEFER TR o

BRRETE

KR A HR2002F1H26 8 R # —
EERRRERT ) ([2002F AR #EAT
2l]) - 20025 EE IR T EIE AR
R R2003F7A238 R4 2 #
A R8I ([2003F AR AT S )
A e

iR & 1R2010F6 H2H $£ 17 2 I
REFAE BB EHLTBAE
R AQRBHEM—ENERE
5T &l ([20104F B& M #E 5T &11)
M20035F R EETEIE H R UL -
20034F i AR #E =T B 4% LE BT IR L 3%
t 2 £ ] B B A 7 BT PR EI B B AT
I - BAFIBEHN AR R HH
2010F4 278 2B 1K »
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The board of directors of the Company may, at their
discretion, grant option to the eligible participant including
any employees, any non-executive directors, directors,
suppliers, customers, advisors, consultants, joint venture
partners and any shareholders of any members of the
Group or any invested entities or any holders of any
securities issued by any members of the Group or any
invested entities. The maximum number of shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under its share option scheme or any
other share option scheme adopted by the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of its issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The total number of
shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date
of passing the relevant resolution adopting the share option
scheme unless it is approved by shareholders in a general
meeting of the Company. The maximum number of shares
issuable under the options to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares in
issue unless it is approved by shareholder in a general
meeting of the Company. Any grant of options under the
share option scheme to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates must be approved by independent
non-executive directors (excluding any independent non-
executive director who is the grantee of the options). Any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares in issue and with an aggregate value (based
on the closing price of the shares at the date of grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, in any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting of
the Company.

30.

BIRRELTE (2)

ARAAEFERBEREGERKS
HEFNERE  BEASEET
AKX B AR REIREEE 2 M
BE - FERTTESZ -EFF - #E
BmeBFEBME-BRA A8
BHEBRRIAEEFMEKER
AR EEEMBITIRELR R
BA BEITEREBARRAEK
TERH B A R R FTER AT KA
AR S FT I L B AR T AT Bk
B ARBIRMNEE A&
LS MBRQABTREETR
R 230% o 7 BT £ 1R #2010
FHEREFIRANEEEMEM
B AR AT EIFT X L B AR R T AT BB
BT oRMBE - TEBBREMR
BREAES CBBAZERERA
BEIE#&ITIRM 210% + BRIERR
RRARQE IR E R g 3 B 1E B
o BRIERARARREARNZER
RitE - BRIEREEKRSHEE
AR AR 1 218 F AR 15 B AR 2 °] 4 2%
TZBROhBERE BEEITRMD
21% ° RIBFERERT EIR AR R
FRES THREHIEZERE
IEEZECHBEATERLEBR
ENBEEBIENTES (T8
R ABIREAR A 2B IIEH
TEE) 2 o W EM12(E
AEEMARRZEEZRFIE
VHERNTEFTIWERIHME
ATEEZBREBRD BITR
17 20.1% K # {8 #& #5,000,000
BT (BERONREEHBBHZK
MEFE) @ AIZERARRRER
GEREE
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
share options were granted, cancelled or exercised and
all share options had been lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2012.

First phase:

On 21 June 2002, options were granted to subscribe for an
aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company, with an
exercise price calculated in accordance with the provisions
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.39 per share.
The closing price of the Company on the day immediately
preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.37 per share. Those
who were granted with the options can exercise their
rights in multiple periods starting from 16 August 2002 to
6 February 2012 as follows:

From 16 August 2002 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 6,850,000 shares

From 1 January 2003 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,280,000 shares

From 1 January 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 6,510,000 shares

From 1 January 2005 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,360,000 shares

30.

BRETTE (2

% B £2013%F 2012912 H31
BIEFE  BERL - FHEHT
R - RELZE20129F12
A31HIEFE - FTEBWRED K
B o

ER R

R2002F6A21H » AR A& H
A] 7288 A 30,000,000 A A A
I 10 2 B8 A4 - 1T (B 4220024
BT Bl X ET E R B AR0.39
BT ARARDREERZER
LRSI —BZURTmERER
03787 - BRBREL AT
H200248H16H # F20124F2
Ae6H I BAfR A T B D #E1TE
&R -

200248 A16HZE2012%2H6H
— #16,850,000/%

20031 A1HZE201252H6H
— #98,280,000%

20041 A1HZE201252H6H
— #96,510,0008%

20051 H1HZE201242H6H
— #98,360,000/%
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30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Second phase:

On 28 February 2003, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 19,800,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.24
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.21
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights from 1 March 2003 to any time before
expiry date on 6 February 2012.

Third phase:

On 29 September 2003, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.51
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.50
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in two periods starting from 2 January
2004 to 6 February 2012 as follows:

From 2 January 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 8,990,000 shares

From 2 July 2004 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 21,010,000 shares

30.

BIRRELTE (2)
LS

R2003F2H28H © AR A FEH
A R B 4 19,800,000/ & A 7]
&t AR HE - 172 B R200245F
BT B X ETE AT R0.24
B ARAIBRMREERRER
BRI —B 2T ERER
0218 T BEEREZ AL
MR2003F3H18 ZE201242A6
HEEH FHREBERTERS
HER] o

=T 8

M2003F9H29H » AR AHE L
A] R B8 4 $£30,000,0000% /& A 7]
Mt 2 BERR A - 171F (B 1R20035F
R 2R X ETE R ER0.51
BIL e AR AIROREBERRZER
FEHHAI—B KM EAESR
0.508 T - BEREREZ AT
200451 H2H #£ £2012F2A
68 |IE B A T HA 5 #E T 1%
E 2R

200451 H2HZE201242H6H
— #18,990,000%

200457 A2B E201252A6H
— #921,010,000/%



30.

175

Annual Report 2013

ZE-=FFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & E2013FE 128431 B 1L FE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Fourth phase:

On 12 September 2005, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 69,800,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.23
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.23
per share. Those who were granted with the options can
exercise their rights in two periods starting from 1 January
2006 to 6 February 2012 as follows:

From 1 January 2006 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 34,900,000 shares

From 1 January 2007 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 34,900,000 shares

Fifth phase:

On 29 January 2008, options were granted to subscribe
for an aggregate of 67,500,000 shares of the Company,
with an exercise price calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the 2003 Share Option Scheme at HK$0.28
per share. The closing price of the Company on the day
immediately preceding the offer of grant was HK$0.28 per
share. Those who were granted the options can exercise
their rights in two periods starting from 1 October 2008 to 6
February 2012 as below:

From 1 October 2008 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 20,250,000 shares

From 1 January 2009 to 6 February 2012
— approximately 47,250,000 shares

30.

BIRERTE )
S

R2005F9A 128 » AR A HE H
A] R B & 69,800,000/ A& A 7]
&0 2 AR #E - 178 B R2003%5F
BT G X ETE /2B R0.23
BIL e AR AIROREBERZER
BRI —B 2T ERER
0238 T - BEEREZ AL
B20065F1A1H #£ £2012F2 A
68 |FEAAIZ A T ER HAf 5 b7 T
e ELRER -

20061818 Z2012%2AH6H
— #934,900,0000%

2007%1A18 Z2012%2AH6H
— #934,900,0000%

SEHMETE -

H2008F1A29H8 © AR A& H
A R4 67,500,000 A& A 7]
B0 2 B B kg - 1718 (B 4220034
R B ETE R ER0.28
BIL e AR AIRORBERZR
LRSI —B2WmERETR
0.28%8 7T - BEREREZ AL
E2008F10A1H # Z=20124F2
A6H IERATREE SRS #E1TE
HER

2008%F10H1H Z=2012%F2A6H
— #920,250,0000%

20091 A1H ZE201242H6H
— #4947,250,000/%
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 30. HBREIE 2
Movements of the share options during both years are set BRERWESFE 2 ZBH W
out below: Nk

Outstanding
Outstanding at 31
at Lapsed December Exercise

1 January during 2012 and price
Date of grant 2012 the year 2013 per share

20125 R

20125 20135
1818 12A31A
HR{TE HR{TE

Employees EE 21 June 2012 100,000 (100,000 - 0.39
2012%6A21H
29 September 2013 760,000 (760,000 - 0.51
2013%9A29H
860000 (860,000) .
Exercisable at the end RS HREE
of the reporting period CIRies:d 860,000 =

Weighted average exercise price  METI/T{FE HK$0.50 HK$0.50 -
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On 21 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in a total of three
inactive subsidiaries, to an independent third party for
a total consideration of HK$70,000. Those disposed
subsidiaries included Sino Lion Capital Inc. (“Sino
Lion"), Beshabar (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited

e PR R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 & %2013 12 A31H ILEE

31. HEHELQH

M2013F6 A218 » REBE L
HWEHE RMBUE=-HFLE
H-BYEEK s B AT 22
R AR 42 {E /70,000
B ZEDHEWNBARRE
Sino Lion Capital Inc. ([Sino

(“Beshabar (MCO)”) and Beshabar Trading Limited Lion])  EES & CRPIBE E A %

(“Beshabar Trading”).

The aggregate net assets of those disposed subsidiaries at

the date of disposal were as follows:

AR) BRAR ([EESEBRF]D
KBeshabar Trading Limited
(IBeshabar Trading]) °

ZECHEMBARRNHEBH
ZEEFERBENT

HK$'000
THETT

Bank balances and cash WOTEGERRS 723
Other receivables E e Y kIR 18
Other payables Hih e 5K (677)
Net assets disposed of FrtEEEFE 64
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ M 6
Total cash consideration IR RIE 70
Net cash outflow arising on disposal PEEECHESRLFRE
Cash consideration received FTUEUR &R (E 70
Bank balances and cash disposed of T ERITHESR IR S (723)
(653)

The subsidiaries disposed of had no significant impact on
the results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended

31 December 2013.

HEHBRAREAEEEZ=2013
F12A31BIEFREZ¥ERRS
MEWEE AL -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
material transactions with related parties during the
year:

Sales of natural uranium resources to A EKIHEERINE
CGNPC-URC KARHE R

Loan interest income received from U BR A [ g S B R Y
China Uranium Development =5 ISNON

Interest income from overdue R IR B

receivable from CGNPC-URC

32.

JEU AR R 2 F B IA

BHREALRS

(@) BRAGARBEEAR
fodh 7 BB S - AKE
ERRAMEALEEE
UTFHEARS :

2013
20134

2012
20124
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
FERx

743,308 1,167,493
7,854 5,479
158 -

Details of the connected transactions of the
Company are disclosed in the “Directors’ Report”
section to the Annual Report.

(b)  As mentioned in notes 8 and 11, for the year ended
31 December 2012, the Group reached a settlement
agreement with the IRD on the amounts of Hong
Kong Profits Tax relating to the years of assessment
2000/01 to 2011/12 for a total sum of approximately
HK$26,357,000 together with interest and penalty
of approximately HK$6,376,000. Amount incurred
before 2002 had been indemnified by the then
controlling shareholders of the Company as in
accordance with the deed of indemnity dated 30
January 2002. In December 2012, the Company
entered into a settlement deed with Mr. Tao Lung,
a beneficial owner of Perfect Develop Holding Inc.
(“Perfect Develop Holding”), the then controlling
shareholder, whereby Mr. Tao Lung, acting on
behalf of the indemnifiers, agreed to settle the
tax liability incurred before 2002 of approximately
HK$2,960,000. During the year ended 31 December
2012, the amount was fully settled.

(b)

ARBIBER HFIERF
WIEFSHE ] PHE -

LB FE8 R P A1 1R P
R ELE2012F12H31H 1E
FE - AEEEBIH
2000/01Z2011/12:% i F
ExBEBMNERBED
26,357,000/% 7t # & ] &
% £ 5% 496,376,000/ JT =
B A 7 15 5% o AR $8 702002
F1A30H T i 2 W E R
BRAE - 20029 B E £
BRIERESEROTER
fRRBERBEX A
MR2012F 128 + AN 7] £
Perfect Develop Holding
Inc. ([Perfect Develop
Holdingl) W E &= #EH A
P BE ST 4E 7T 3 N LK
Bt FELXERKBE
ATTE - RIE X 72002
FHEENBERED
2,960,000/ 7T © & Z=2012
F12A31BILEFE % F
RECEEES (T -
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management during the year
was as follows:

32. EBEALRS &)

(c) TEEBAESZHME

FARARRESTNEME
ZERABZMEWT :

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
R TAT

Short-term benefits 52 HARE T 7,673 4,187
Post-employment benefits BEE R A 15 19
7,688 4,206

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
key executives was determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

ARBEERETETBRABZM
THFEMZESEERMER AL
ZRARTEBEETE -
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33. COMMITMENTS 33. EIE
Commitments under operating leases REHERIE
The Group as lessor KEBEZL AN
Property rental income earned during the year was FRARBMz2MERSWANER
approximately HK$7,580,000 (2012: HK$6,958,000). The 7,580,000 7T (20124F : 6,958,000
investment properties were expected to generate rental BIT) o WA RS EEEMS
yields of 10.34% (2012: 8.33%) on an ongoing basis. All I 2510.34% (20124 : 8.33%) ° FT
properties held have committed tenants for the next one to BIEMEABABEE—E0RF
five years. ZHE -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMmEHEAEER  AEEDHE
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum AP RN THIRPR BB 2 KRR &
lease payments: ERENRETLAEL

2013 2012
20135 20124

HK$°000 HK$'000
FTAET TAT

Within one year —FE R 5,751 6,287
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEZERF
(BIEERMEF) 3,656 5,581

9,407 11,868
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COMMITMENTS (Continued) 33.

Commitments under operating leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

The Group leased certain of its offices and staff quarters
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for properties
were negotiated for a term ranging from one to three years
and rentals were fixed throughout the rental period.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

RIE (2)
CRRERE (F
KEEEBFATA

AEERELEHELHHARE
FHAEREIRS - ﬁ%%%
Z**ﬁﬁi%u? i

RBEEMEEER - ~EERE
PRI B L A E AR T 5
REVHZ RARRERENR -

2013 2012
20134 20124
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Land and buildings T RIEF
Within one year —F R 5,820 6,707
In the second to fifth year inclusive RE_FEZERF
(BRERMF) 2,365 7,218
8,185 13,925
PLEDGE OF ASSETS 34. EEKH

As at 31 December 2012, certain assets of the Group were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the Group
as follows (2013: nil):

RITAEFIRE

Bank balances and cash

M2012%12A318 » "EED 7
FrERBITRERESE TEE
BT (20134 : &) :

2013
20134

2012
20124
HK$'000
FET

HK$’000
FER

- 644
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. ZARBFEAMRFK
THE COMPANY

2013 2012
201345 20124
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BosE FHT T
Non-current assets IEMBNEE
Plant and equipment R K 8 1,713 2,218
Investments in subsidiaries MiB A R)IEE 277,929 277,929
279,642 280,147
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR BB R B FB (a) 10,005 -
Loan receivable from a shareholder JEU IR R E R 248,082 775,174
Trade and other receivables FEUR AR SR R oA
FEUGRIA 199,276 249,033
Bank balances and cash IRITEGF MRS 1,004,400 533,281
1,461,763 1,557,488
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables FETBRFR R ELAD
FERFFRIE 15,874 202,140
Income tax payable FESFTISHR 2,910 22,660
18,784 224,800
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,442,979 1,332,688
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBERREAE 1,722,621 1,612,835
Capital and reserves AR A R (s
Share capital A% A 33,326 33,326
Reserves 1 (b) 1,168,437 1,085,943
Total equity S ABER 1,201,763 1,119,269
Non-current liabilities IEmEaE
Convertible bonds EE i 520,705 493,413
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEEE 153 153
520,858 493,566
1,722,621 1,612,835
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. ZARBBEMRRE &)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: BT

(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) FEUL T B~ R FRIE
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and FRAREREER 28 RA
repayable on demand. JEERIEE -

(b) Movements in the reserves during the years are as follows: (b) FRRBHEEHOT -

Equity (Accumulated

Share  component losses)/

Share options of convertible Other retained
premium reserve bonds reserve earnings

RS (RitER)/

EtaE  BRERE  BAS2 Rbfis  RERA
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BT TR BT BT AT

At 1 January 2012 201261 A18 710,971 154 138,827 = (73,414) 776,533
Profit for the year FRGEF - - - - 309,417 309,417
Loss arising from translation EAELCER = = = (12) - (12)
At 31 December 2012 20125 12A31H 710,971 154 138,827 (12) 236,003 1,085,943
Profit for the year FREA = - - - 82,470 82,470
Gain arising from transation BEHEE 2 WE - - - 24 - 24

At 31 December 2013 20135124317 710,971 154 138,827 12 318,473 1,168,437
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36. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries held by the Company as at
31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

36. MIBARZIE

KN A 7R20134F K20124F12A4
S1ARAZMBARIFENT

Place of Particulars of issued
Class of shares incorporation/  Place of share capital/paid up Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary held establishment  operations  registered capital interest of the Group  Principal activities
BaAYe BEITREA/
WRARER HERGER R 23 E3 80k BREMBRAFE FEEEGRE TERK
2013 2012
20135 20126
Direct subsidiaries:
ERNELR:
Yugofoil Holdings Limited Ordinary shares ~ BVI Hong Kong 50,000 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“Yugofoil’) LER AERNES A of US$1 each RER
RERARERAR 50,0008k & B
(&) SREE1ET
Sino Lion (note c) Ordinary shares ~ BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
(Fitst(c) TRk ABRNEE A of US$1 each REAR
TR R
BREEIET
Ever Jump Limited Ordinary shares ~ BVI Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100%  Inactive
ERk ABRLEE R of US$1 each EEER
TR R
BREEIET
Indirect subsidiaries:
MEMELR
Beshabar (MCO) (note (¢)) ~ Ordinary shares  Macau Macau 1 quota (share) - 100%  Inactive
EpERM () EER bl i of MOP100,000 each EEEK
ERE ()
EHER%E 100,000
Beshabar Trading (note c) Ordinary shares  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares - 100%  Inactive
(Wt () LAk B i of HK$1 each e
100 ERR
BREE1ET
RERRYEERAR) Contributed PRC PRC RMB30,000,000 95.70%  9570%  Manufacturing
capital HE i AR30,000,00070 and trading of
BAER pharmaceutical
products
Wide Triumph Limited Ordinary shares ~ Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Management services
MBEERAR LER h BA of HK$1 each ERRS
100ME IR
BREEAT
Vital Pharmaceuticals Ordinary shares  Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Inactive
Company Limited LAk B B of HK$1 each i 7S
GRBEERNA 1008

BREETET
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36. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. fIBATSIR &)

Particulars of issued
share capital/paid up
registered capital
BRIREA/
BREMBRARE

Place of
Class of shares  incorporation/
establishment

Place of
operations

Attributable equity

Name of subsidiary held interest of the Group  Principal activities

HEARZE BEROER  RUZbE EHBH ARERERE TERR

Indirect subsidiaries:
(Continued):
MENEBAR: (&
# Sichuan Hengtai (note b) Contributed PRC PRC
w85 (b)) capital B HE
BNER
AR EEHR A8 (note b) Contributed PRC PRC
("HEEE") (Wz(b) capital HE B
NV
)| REEHR 25 (note b) Contributed PRC PRC
("mINEZE") (HzH(b) capital HE HE
SN

RMB43,000,000
AR 43,000,000

RMB18,000,000

AR18,000,0007

RMB229,541,874
AR229,5418747C

2013 2012

20138 20125

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

Selling and
distributing of
pharmaceutical
products

HERDHER

Property development
and management

NEERRER

Pharmaceutical
research and
development
and investment
management

BEHERRAEE

Wholly owned foreign enterprise

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period or at any
time during the reporting period.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, FX #} & %
and Sichuan Hengtai obtained the approval of change
in shareholding from Vital Pharmaceutical (Sichuan)
Company Limited (“Sichuan Vital”), a former subsidiary to
PJIIE % in relation to the spin-off of Sichuan Vital during
the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 21 June 2013, the Group entered into a sale agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Sino Lion,
Beshabar (MCO) and Beshabar Trading to an independent
third party.

#*

SNEBELE

BB S A BR A S A
SRR SR AN S o H P AT B
BEMREENERES

HZE2012F12A31H IEFE -
REBE 3 &%) 1E2= 0 EEG
AREZ2011F12A31H L F
FE D YRATH B2 7] M0 || 4 R &L
BAERAR ([0 48 ]) mE
BARAERM) | EREET)|E
¥R E) 2 Bk -

R2013F6 8218 © AEEF
THEHRE  A—BBUE=
75 i &Sino Lion ~ EEER
Pi KBeshabar TradingZ &
ERARE R
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37.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Provision of intra-group financial services

On 22 January 2014, the Company and CGNPC Huasheng
Investment Limited (“Huasheng”), a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CGNPC,
the ultimate controller indirectly holding approximately
50.11% of equity interests in the Company, entered
into a conditional framework agreement (the “Financial
Services Framework Agreement”) for provision of intra-
group financial services. Subject to the fulfillment of
conditions precedent, the Financial Services Framework
Agreement shall have a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. Pursuant to
the Financial Services Framework Agreement, the Group
may from time to time deposit sums with Huasheng with
interest income in return. The terms and conditions of such
deposits shall be negotiated at arm’s length basis.

The entering into of the Financial Services Framework
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute a continuing connected transaction under
Chapter 14A and a major transaction under Chapter 14
on the part of the Company as specified in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Details are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 January 2014.

Up to the date of this report, the conditions precedent in
relation to the Financial Services Framework Agreement
have not been completely fulfilled.

37.

HmEMBRSIE
IR (LR W B IS AR B

M2014F1H228 » KR A &
BRZEREERBRAA ([EFEHK])
HERBEERANBHBRBET LB
TRFAEZR B ([ B 5 RIS ESE 1R
FD o ERAE—HREBEMK
SNHRATE DHREZEBRAFR
2EWBRAR  MPEZEBERQ
Al AEEFB AR AH50.11%
A4 2 B AR PRI T o REERK TR
GH% - BEIRBIERIBEEB
20141 H1H # £ # £20164F
12A318 I AHA= A F - R
MRS ERDZ  AEEAD
BERERTH - UFIEWRAES
Bl - BEEZETROERRIE
AR A TFHERER -

REBEMRMES EMRAE@R
E RIS RISER R R A
BTRETZRIERARAR
FUARE T ZHBERERIHR
RRBIREFI4ERTEERS -

FAHBHIRARG BHA
2014FE1 A22R 2 R -

BEAHREBRY  BRAVHRSE
ER B2 BRIG R R 2 ERE
}iz o
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Continued)

Supplemental deed to a subscription agreement

On 18 March 2011, the Company has entered into a
subscription agreement with different parties pursuant to
which the Company has agreed to allot and issue and
China Uranium Development agreed to subscribe the
Company'’s shares. The share subscription was completed
on 18 August 2011 and China Uranium Development has
become immediate holding company of the Company.

On 1 April 2011, Perfect Develop Holding charged
450,000,000 shares in favour of China Uranium
Development for fulfilling certain conditions under the
subscription agreement.

On 18 February 2014, the parties to the subscription
agreement entered into a supplemental deed to vary
certain terms of the subscription agreement, including
mainly the following:

(a) Definition of “Reimbursement Period” and
“Settlement Date” as defined in the Company’s
circular dated 23 May 2011 is amended.

(b) Charges on 225,000,000 shares owned by Perfect
Develop Holding will be released and Perfect
Develop Holding will not sell those shares before 31
December 2014.

(c) The obligations of parties pursuant to the
supplemental deed is conditional upon the
Company entering into a HK$40 million loan
agreement with Yugofoil on the same date of the
supplemental deed.

Details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated
31 March 2011, 11 April 2011, 18 August 2011, 19 August
2011 and 18 February 2014 and the Company’s circular
dated 23 May 2011.

37.

WEHEREE (&)

REHEZBRREN

MR201143A18H » A A A &+~
BTN AT LRE R B
It RARBERERENETE
FEMEZRERERBEAQAMR
3o B 7 R BB 7201148 A18H
EREBEFRBEZEREXNASEA
Cld=k:32di NI

RmERBWMHEETHE TH
% » Perfect Develop Holding#?
201144 A 1H #450,000,0004% I%
MERTHEIHEERE -

N20145 28188 - RBEM=ZEH
BT H 5 BT S e R AE R BB W
F2ETER EEETIIK

o
A

(a) MWARATEBHA2011
F5H238 2K AT R
T2 [HERE] R I&£8
Bl Z2EHBEIBE -

(b)  FPerfect Develop Holding
B ") 225000000 A% K I
I 19 1 ¥ #7 B KPerfect
Develop Holding#s ~& 7
201412 A318 A1 i & Z

S5 -

(c) WARNMAHNESITHNT
ZEEANERRRERT
RNFTLAEROE BET
37 % 8 /40,000,000 7T
ZE R ERRIE ©

HBENARE B AE2011F3A8
318 « 201144 A118 - 2011484
188 ~ 201148 5 19H ;201442 A
18AZ A5 RAR R BEA20114
5H23H 73K o
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

Location

Office Unit Nos. 15-16

on 1st Floor to 3rd Floor and
Office Unit Nos. 1-12

on 4th Floor of an office building
known as “BHEE = 0,

No. 318 Tianfuda Road North Section,
within Gaoxin District Technology
Incubate Park
(EFEREFEER),

Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province, the PRC

No. 3, Keyuan South Road,

High-Tech Industrial Development Zone,

Chengdu City,
Sichuan Province,
the PRC

BFEREZYE
NE Type of properties Lease term
MEER HEHR
A Office premises Medium-term lease
IS FIE/NE FHIFEE
R ER T

TR R EE R
RIFREILHI3185%
2R BRI EF O
ZWAEKXIE
112231 2 15-165%
HREBAAR4E
1221258

PATENL

=8 Office premises
) WAE

B ER T

SEE

RHE A B8 3557

Medium-term lease
REIE
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